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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bigfoot Retail Solutions
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™). its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) and its associate comprising of the
consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended. and notes to the consolidated financial
statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafier referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries and associate, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, and its associates as at March 31, 2023, their
consolidated loss and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements™ section of our report. We are independent of the Group and associates in
accordance with the *Code of Ethics” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Establishment of robust internal control related to advances given to vendors and suppliers -
Given by the auditors of subsidiary - Wigzo Technologies Private Limited

As stated in note 43(b). the auditor of Wigzo Technologies Private Limited, a subsidiary Company.
have included Emphasis of Matter paragraph in their auditor report on the financial statement of that
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 with respect to establishment of robust internal control
system and documentation and review of transactions and balances during the year. Accounting
treatment for provision for doubtful advances to supplier of Rs 52.29 Mn and provision for doubtful
receivables of Rs 7.31 Mn from customer recorded. Also, the balances of Rs 8.91 Mn for balances
outstanding from customer has been written off during the vear.

Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report. but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements. our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position. consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows
of the Group including its associates in accordance with' the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules. 2021 specified under section 133 of
the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates
and joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of their respective company(ies) and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls. that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company.
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective
company(ies) to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are
also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective company(ies).

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error. as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates and joint ventures of which we are the
independent auditors [and whose financial information we have audited, to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction. supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out
by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 2

subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs. 1,972 Million as at March
2023, and total revenues of Rs 255 Million. and net cash inflows of Rs. 55 Million for
ended on that date. These financial statement and other financial information have been
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(b)

other auditors, whose financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have
been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in

so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries. joint
ventures and associates. and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act. in so
far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. is based solely on the
report(s) of such other auditors.

The accompanying consolidated f(inancial statements include unaudited financial statements and
other unaudited financial information in respect of | subsidiary, whose financial statements and
other financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 58 Million as at March 31, 2023, and total
revenues of Rs. 6 Million and net cash inflows of Rs 11 Million for the year ended on that date.
These unaudited financial statements and other unaudited financial information have been furnished
to us by the management. Our opinion, in so far as it relates amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries, and associates, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, and associates, is based solely on
such unaudited financial statement and other unaudited financial information. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial
statements and other financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements. and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below. is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™). issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act. based on our audit and on
the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary companies and associate companies. incorporated in India, as noted in
the *Other Matter’ paragraph we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries and
associates as noted in the “other matter’ paragraph we report. to the extent applicable. that:

(a)

(c)

(d)

We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors except that with respect to certain subsidiaries, as
disclosed in note 43(xi) to the consolidated financial statements, the backup of the books of account
and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers
physically located in India on daily basis.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet. the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Comy
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 specified under section 133 of the Act:
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(e)

(h)

(1)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act. of its subsidiary
companies, associate companies and joint ventures. none of the directors of the Group’s
companies, incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

On the basis of written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2023, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act. of its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India. none of the other directors of the Group’s companies incorporated
in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India.
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to
this report:

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company. its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures incorporated in India for the year ended
March 31, 2023:

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the *Other matter” paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group. in its consolidated financial statements —
Refer Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements:

ii.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2023;

ti.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company. its subsidiaries. associates and joint
ventures incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2023.

iv.  a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries. which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries. to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) . with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or any of s
subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or providg
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

vi.

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries. which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, associate and joint
ventures] respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the respective Holding Company or any of such [subsidiaries. associate and
joint ventures] from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™). with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Holding Company or any of such [subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures| shall, whether.
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (~Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries.
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material mis-statement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries, companies, incorporated in India.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable only w.e.f;
April I, 2023 for the Holding Company. its subsidiaries companies incorporated in India.
hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Asdociates LLP

Chartered Accountan

ICAI

Partner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 234004 19BGTGSES513

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2023
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited (‘the Group’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i)  Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

Holding
sf:;:il:l?;gj / Clause number of the
S. No Name CIN YY1 CARO report which is
associate/ R i
s qualified or is adverse
joint
venture
1 Bigfoot Retail | U72900DL2011PTC225614 | Holding (iii)(a); (iti)(b): (iti)c):
Solutions (it1)(D): (x)(b): (xvii)
Private Limited
2 Wigzo U72900DL2013PTC251548 | Subsidiary (xvii)
Technologies
Private Limited
3 Pickrr U74140HR2015PTCO057213 | Subsidiary (xvii)
Technologies
Private Limited B
4 Arvind Limited | U72400GJ2013PLC074576 | Subsidiary (xvii)

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm

pernsa jg{éhchani

Partner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 23400419BGTGSES513

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 27, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BIGFOOT RETAIL SOLUTIONS
PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the year ended March 31,
2023. we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group™) . which are companies incorporated in India. as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group. which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records.
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
{inancial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained [and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below. is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group , have. maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31,2023, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far
as it relates to these 3 subsidiaries. which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries.

|
5
For S.R. Batliboi & Assveiates LLP

pe¥ Sdnjay Bachchani
Partner

Membership Number: 400419
UDIN: 23400419BGTGSES513

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 27. 2023



Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Linited

CIN: UT2900DL2011PTC225614

Consolidated Balance Sheet as st March 31, 2023
(AN smomts in Rs, Millicns, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Asat As at As at
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
{resiated®)
ASSETS

Non-current nssets

Propertv, plam and equipment 3 194.56 8234 1677
Capital work in progress 3 49.27 - -
Goadwili 4 10,920.57 1,098.77 -
Ciher Intangible assels 4 1,006.53 232,54 022
Right-oluse assers 4a 96956 352.65 25.29
Investmenis in associnfes 3 - 11160 -
Financial nssets

(i} Ivesimenis 6ifi) 46,98 3020 -

{11} Other financial assets G(v) 34321 9,593,858 1.674.04
Mon-current Tax Assels (net) B 17.14 12.47 -
Other non-current assels 9 201 11.99 -
Total non-current assets 13,839.83 11,842.44 1,116.32
Current assets
Inventories 7 1213 873 222
Financial assets

{i) Invesiments 6{i) 208.19 55.04 -

{u) Trade recemvables (i) 20752 464,20 140,75

(it} Cash and cash squivalents Giii} §55.94 34312 66,43

(i) Bank balances other than (i) above alw) T9.15 63,46 739.77

i} Other financial Assels v} 7.373.68 3,187.29 206,34
Currenl Tax Assels {net) & 29503 8680 2442
Other current assets L 29635 12539 19.59
Toial current assets 10,027.99 4,339.03 1,259.52
Toral assets 23,867.82 16,181.47 240584
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equily Share Capial {11} SHU.O6 56778 38466
Share Consideration pursuant to Merger Ll 012 01z -
Oither eguity LI 16,428.81 13,323.61 906,60
Equity attvibutable to equity holders of the parent 17,018.89 13,891.51 1,291.26
Non-controlling interests 11} 47.69 45.29 -
Total equity 17,066.58 13,936.80 1,291.16
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial lial L]

{ 1) Lense Liabilities 3n 81478 152.05 16.75
Provisions 13 3581 27.07 15.58
Total non-current linbilities 370.59 179,12 3233
Current liabilities
Financial labilities

{1) Borrowmngs 12(n 1,718,048 122 63.64

(i) Leasa Liabilities 30 1RO.0G 208.58 02

(i) Trade pavables 1240i)

(2} Townd owstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 12278 26.04 347
{b) Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small eaterprises 1,865.61 877.42 518.92

{iv) Other Financial Linbfitics 1211 1.062.74 34350 103,23
Provisions 13 6897 26.61 B56
Onher current Habilives 14 21241 34018 37633
Total current liabilities 5,930.65 2,065,558 1,062.24
Total equity and labilities 23.867.82 16,181.47 2,405.84

The accomparning netes aneé an integrul part ol the consclidated Gnancial stalemenls 1-47

* Refer nowe 40

As per our report of 2ven date ’
For 5.R. Batlibol & Associates LLIP
Chanered Accounants

ICAI Finrl/fzyissmﬂon Mo 11t

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Linvited

!

Sanjay Bachehani Saahil Goel
Parmer Director
Membership MNo. 4004 19 DIN: 03 16685
Place : Gurugram
Date ; September 27, 2023
Deepa Kapoor
Company Secretary

Plage : Gurugram
Date : Seplember 27, 2023



Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UT2900DL2011PTC225614

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

" For the year ended For the year ended
Farmiulen Fey March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Income

Revenue from Operations 15 10,888.27 6,105.70
Other income 16 378.49 23544
Tetal income (1) 11,266.76 6,341.14
Expenses

Cost of Merchant Solutions 17 334476 4,775.00
Purchase of raded goods 18 41.58 12.82
Changes in inventories of traded goods 19 (7.79) (2,12}
Employee benefits expense 20 3,182.75 1,220.36
Finance cost Fi| 98.28 12.88
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 413.85 65.43
Other expenses 22 1,897.03 §93.74
Total Expenses (1) 13,970.46 6,978.12
(Loss)/Profit before exceptional items and tax (111=1-11) (2,703.70) (636.98)
Exceptional items (V) 24.1 (631.58)

(Loss)/Profit before tax (V=ITI+1V) (3,335.28) (636.98)
Tax expense 32

Current tax - -
Adjustment of tax relating 1o earlier periods 29 -
Deferred tax - (0.80)
Total Tax Expense (V1) 2.91 (0.80)
{Loss)/Profit for the year (VII=V-VI1) (3,338.19) (636.18)
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss): 24.2

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:

(i) Re-measurement (Joss ) pain on defined benefit plans 1.46 (2.82)

(i1} Gain/(loss) on sale of equity & preference instruments carried at FVTOCI (19.90) -

(iii} Changes in fair value of equity & preference mstruments carried at FVTOC! (54.75) £

(b) Ttems that will be reclassified o profit or loss in subsequent periods:

(i) Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 2.97) 2.86
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (V11 = a+b) _(?5‘16) 0.04
Total Comprehensive Incomef{Lass) for the year (3,414.35) (636.14)
Attributable to:

Equity Holders of the parent (3,189.38) (629.95)
Nom-controlling interests (224.97) (6.18)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the lidated fi ial 147

As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LBP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 101

njay Bachchani
Partner

Membership No. 400419

Place : Gurugram
Date : September 27, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

/

Saahil Goel

Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

Director
DIN: 05106685

Director
DIN: 03595876

Deepa Kapaoor Kumar T
Company Secretary —Ehtef Financial Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date ; September 27, 2023



Bipfooat Retall Soliitiens Private Limited

CIN: UT2M0D L2 1PTCI23614

Conselidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(AR wrnounty drs B, Millions. wnloss otherwise stamed)

A Eagulty shitre capital (Refer note 10)

Farticulars Number Amwosnl
Asat April 1, 2021 3,506,246 156
Add: Shares iasued durg e year 32,115 N[5
Less: Bey-back of sheres doring the veur i21.432) {0.23)
As ot Moreh 31, 2022 3,66,52% 38
Add: Fhares issued daring (e vear 05574 85
As at March 11, 2023 103 40
B Compulsorily Convertible Cumulutive Preference Shures (Refer nute 11
A 5 ; hares YCCCPS Serivs A Serien B Series BI Serlea C1 Sertes C2
Numilier Ampunt Muiber Amsnant Number. e Numbor Ampint Number Amusnt
Asat April 1, 2021 90,781 (e LUL IS (R 4,08, 361 166.28 246,233 8741 94,968 33T
A Shares issued dariig the vear . 3 . 3 g i : = % 3
As at March 31, 2022 Y8R ual 191,848 LERC) 468,351 166.28 24618 BTA7 94,968 &l
Adit Shares issted during (b yesr - - - - - - - % - -
Bacas: comverted inko equity shene cophal dunng tle yeur
As st March 31, 2023 L, THI arl L9845 B38E 68,301 166,16 246,283 g 04,350 am
T -, - Serles C3 Serles DL Series E Serles E1 Serfes E2
w sl Number Amount Nursber Amwiumt Number Amount Number Amount Mumber Amouni
Asat Apell 1, 3021 B1.395 W0 ¥ = = = = = P %
Add: Shares issued dureng the year i : 167,148 5634 149207 121.97 . =
As ot Maorch 31, 2021 1,395 8590 1,67,148 [UET] 349,207 123,97 - - 4 .
Adid: Shares {asaed dusieg the vear o = - - - - 640 2650 Rk a1
Less: convertad inn equity share capital during the vuar - - - - (MBI (26,509
Avat March 31, 2021 41,398 .00 167,144 934 340,207 123.57 - - . 1]
€. Other Equity
Atribuiable to the equity holders of the parent
Reserve and Surplus
= Tiem of Other Total Equlty i
Partleutars St mn;’r;‘:‘ard Caupltal Redemption]  General Fm_\rﬂ:: ::ﬂr;:w Retained Comprehensive | nutributable toequity |~y i
Promium Pl Riserve Reserve fejicai varnings Income halders of the parent
Balance as w1 April I, 202§ 1,343.52 L.22 - - - (40RL13)| - HU6.60 - 06,60
(LassyProfit for the yeur - . - - (617.13) < (627.13) (618 (633.31)
Other Comprehetsive Invomed|{ Luss):

(1) Re-memsarement {loss Vizakn on defived benefit plans - - " - . (282} (uzl . - (Z.Q)L
Totwl Comprehensive Incense/{Lass) 139351 7] % L115.36) 2.82) 665 &18) 17048
Add Addition on seeount of consolidation af subsdianes duning te vear . . - - - 5147 5147
Add: Suvrities premivum an isue o shars capital e - 1401272 - 14m2T
Less: Calzation agamst hindick of shares (742 0| (742.69) 2 (742.65)|
Bess Tax puid on huybeck of shazes [REAR 5! - (17308) - {173.02)]
Less Expenaes on buyback of shuses 11 20| . (120, - 10,201
Acld: Shure hased pavincsl sxpaase (Refer sale 1) . 23 = - - 32380 - 32380
Liass: Trnnasction cost associated with issunse of shires 1365.79) - 3 = 5 3 (360.7) . (360.79)
Audd: Tramstation reserve creaied durmp the vear - . - . [286)] - (2.80)) - (2.88)
Add: Reserve ercuted on buyhack of shares - - {32 - - = - = -
Balince ns at March 31, 2022 [ERELE S 3503 22 - (286, (282)) 1332361 4539 13.368.90
Loty Tralit for the yoor 5 . . - 7 (3,113.22) (224.97) (3,338.19)
Giher Comprehensive Tncome/(Lass

(R (loss)guin definied benefit ploss - = - 145 148 - Lds

i) Crain{ boss ) onesale of equity & prefirence imstriments carmivd ot FVTOCT - - B - (180 (19.00) - (1950

{iiE) Changes in thir value of equily & peelanenno: instruments cwried s FYTOC - - - - - (54.75) (54.75) - (54.75)

fiv, e ditfimences on transladlen of fereign operulions - - - - - - (297 {2157 -

[Torul Comprehensive Incomei(Luss) 1411954 32503 022 - (Z.86) 4,228.70), (79.00) 10,134.23 (17268}

AdU: Adddition an account of consolidation of subsidiursss during the vear " i - 4 % = i 246,80

A Secaritics pramian o shares issved danng the year 637295 - - - - 6,372.95 -

Al Shnre barsed payvint éxpamay (Refor rote 31 - 65513 - - - 65519 -

Akl St Bsind pagiment eptivns gravied as part of gl 21581 o . 2581 "

Akl Tranalation ragerve erdnted during the veer - 247 - - 297 - A
i of Mon-conteolling ineres) - - - - (96234 - {6234 (1943 {581.78),
Greneral Reserve o ES0Ps lapasd during the yerr - {215.08) - 2508 - - . - - -

[Belance as at March 31, 2023 044249 1, 1HO.YS %] 25,08 [41] 15,191 d {79.00) 16,428 51 A%.69 16.476.50

The decoimpayiieg s0les are an integral part of the consolidsted faancl sttements 1= 47

As per our ieport ol even dale
For SR Butlibol & Aschstes LLP

Sunjny Bachehanl
Partner
Membership Mo 100419

Place : Gurgram
Dule ; September 27, 2023
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For and on bebalf of the Board of Directors

Bigfoat Retull Solutions Private Limlied

Gauteim Kepoo,
Direcior
DHN; 03395876

Devpa Kapoor
Company Seoretary

Phaee G
Date ; Septerniber 27, 2023



Bigfoot Retail Selutions Private Limited

CIN: UT2900DL2011PTC225614

Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
(AL nmounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particolars

A) Operating Activitfes

{LossVProfit before Tax

Adl to il Np before tax to net cash Moves
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assels

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Provicion for Doubtful Debts (net)

Bad debt wrilten off

Provision for Doubitful Recoverables

Provision for impai in value of'l in associdie
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations loss / (Gain )} (Net)

Share based payment expense

Imerest expense

Interest on lease ligbiliy

Fair value (gam)/ loss on Investment ol fair value through profit or loss
‘Gain on sale of Property, Plant and Eguipment

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets writien off
Rent waiver on lease labilities

Inierest Income

Interest Income on Income jax refund

Interest income on Unwinding of discount on security deéposits paid
Operating (Loss)/Profit before working capital changes
Movenents it working capital:

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

{Increase)/Decrease in Trade asd olber receivables
{Incresse)/Decrease in Other financial ascels
{Increase)Decrease in Other Assets

Increasef{Decrease) in Trade Payables
Increasef{Decrease) in Other linancial liabilities

I D in other liabilit

Increase/{ Decrease) in Provisions

Cash flow Mrom/{used in) operntions

Income taxes paid {net)

Net eash flews from/{used in} operati ivitics (A)
Tnvesting Activities

Cash Bow from investing activities

Purchase of propenty, plant and equi (i ing other i
Payment towards acquisition of Subsidiaries

Advance Paid for isition of shares in subsidiari
Purchase consideration paid (or business combination
Investment in shares of associae

[nvestment in shares of i other than subsidiaries and
Purchase of mutual funds
Interest Received on deposits with banks
Invesiment in Bank deposits (nel)
Net eash Nows used in investing activities (B)

B

misols and capital advances)

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Cash Flow from financing activities
Procesds from issue of share capital
Proceeds from Securities premium on issue of shares
Buyback of equity shares
Proceeds from borrowings
Payment towards acquisition of Nen-controlling micrest
Repayment of lexss liabiliy
Interest Pard on lease liabiliy
Intgrest Paid on Borrowings
Met cash flows genernted from financing activities ( C)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents on account of acquisition
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at the end of year
Components of cash and ensh equivalents
Cash on hand
With banks - on current account
With banks — on current account for Amount payable, collected an behall of the cuslomers
Depasits with eriginal matueity of legs than theee months
Total cash and cash equivalents |Refer note 6iii)|

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the consolidated Mnancial statements: |- 47

As per our repart of even date l
For 8.1, Batliboi & Assaciates LLP
Chartered Accouniants

HCAI Firm Registration Mo, 101049

Bachchani
Fartner
Membership No. 400419

Place : Gurugram
Date - September 27, 2023

Year ended Year-ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(3,335.28) {636.98)
8524 2181
69138 13,48
157.21 3004
271127 56.41
3.62 2.06
120,18 2029
11160 .
03] -
65519 324.89
46.22 3.05
49.70 203
1,92 (0.42)
(0.02) (0.00)
0.21 04l
. (1.80)
(362.41) (230.68)
(2.78) {1.05)
3.00, 0.47)
(1,503,51) (359.84)
(3.40) (0.64)
(419,65) {289.47)
(169,80) (177.00)
(05.24) (82.25)
408.92 26732
27980 12478
255.61 150,68
43.57 21.44
(1.203.71) {374.98)
(175.85) (56.32)
(1,379.56) (431.30)
(313.16} (122.84)
(6,971.13) (689.98)
{30:0.00) =
- {741.87)
. (111.60)
(52.44) (39.20)
0.04 (0.00)
284.02 83.35
5,969.29 (10,685.45)
(1,413.38) (12,307.59)
21.23 183.34
2,573.44 12,726.05
= (0.22)
1,714.86 (60.44)
(981,78) -
(117.31) (26.28)
{49.70) (9.03)
(46.22) (3.08)
3,114.52 12,810.356
321.58 7150
34312 G643
191.24 205,19
85594 343.12
000 o.lo
1204 165.55
450.64 165.64
393.24 11.83
H55.04 343.12

For and on behall of the Board of Directors
Bigloot Retail Solutions Private Limited

Sanhil Goel
Director
DIN: 05106685

-

Deepa Kapoor
Company Secretary

Place : Gui
Dale - September 27, 2023

0
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5

Gautam Kapoor
Direstor
DIN: 03595876

aw A

M’F;IHMV
ref Financial Officer



Bigfoot Retnil Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UT2900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to C lidated financial for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1

2.1

22

Corporate Information

The Consolidated Financial Stat ts comprise financial st of “Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited” (*fhe Holding Company™ or “The Company”} its subsidiaries
and its associate (collectively referred to as “the Group™) for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited is a private limited company incorporated on September 28, 2011, under the relevant provisions of erstwhile Companies Act, 1956.
Shiprocket is an e-commeree enablement platform powering direct commerce. Shiprocket helps small businesses, retail brands, direct-to-consumer merchants, and social commerce
retailers scale through its technology stack. The Group is also engaged in the business of analytics, marketing automation and personalization services for ecommerce and Retail
compenies. It runs znalytics on behaviour and transactional data and utilise that data for providing marketing or analysis services to its clients.

The Consclidated fi ial have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors on September 27, 2023,

5 v of significant acc ing policies
Basis of preparation
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act

2013 (“the Act™), read with of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as ded and p i ] ts of Division IT of Schedule 11 to the
Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule II1), as applicable to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Second Amendment Rules, 2015, the Group has adopted March 31, 2023 as reporting date for first time adoption of
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) and consequently April 01, 2021 as the transition date for preparation of financial statements, The financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2023, are the first financials, prepared in accordance with Ind-AS. Up to the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Group prepared its financial statements in
accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014
(“previous GAAP” or “Indian GAAP™). For preparing these financial statemenis, opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 01, 2021 i.e. the date of transition to Ind-AS. The
figures for the previous periods and for the year ended March 31, 2022 and April |, 2021 have been restated, regrouped and reclassified, wherever required to comply with Ind-AS
and Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, { Refer note 41 for details )

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except certain financial instrument which are measured at fair values,
wherever applicable, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements, These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions, within two
decimals, unless otherwise stated,

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

(1) The Group consolidates all entities which are controlled by it, The Group contrel an entity when it has:

= Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the entity)
= Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its invelvement with the entity and
= The ability to use its power over the entity to affect its retums

The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investes, including;

= The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

= Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

= The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

= The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

= Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to
be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Entities
cottrolled by the group are consolidated from the date of control commences until the date of ceases, Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the parent, its subsidiary and associate Companies,

Details of subsidiaries and associate, which are included in consolidated financial are as follows:
Name of the entity Country of ntorporation Proportion of Ownership Interest Proportion of Voting Power

2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

Shiprocket Pte Ltd. Singapore 100% 100% 100% 100%

Wigzo Technologies Private Limited India 79.20% 76.65% 79.20% 76.65%

Pickrr Technologies Private Limited India 90.15% 0% 90,15% 0%

Srllplrockel Omuni Private Limited (formerly Arvind Internet India 100% 0% 100% o

| Limnited)

Logibricks Technologies Private Limited India 28.14% 28.14% 28.14% 28.14%




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UT2900DL2011PTC225614

Motes to Consolidated i il stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

bj

Consolidated Financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If an entity of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated Financial Statements for like transactions and events in similar ci 25, appropriate adj are made to
that group entity financial information in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. Those interests of noncontrolling shareholders that are present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proporticnate share of net assets upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests® proportionate share
of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests' share of subsequent changes in equity.

Profit or loss and cach component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests, Total comprehensive income of
the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-contrelling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Changes
in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non- controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

(ily Associate: Associate is the entity over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the case where the group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method : Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the group's share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made p on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on ions between the group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the group. The carrying amount of equity accounted investments are tested for impairment,

Taniviafad [TF P

Transactions on
Intragroup balances and transactions between members (including subsidiaries and silos) of the Group are eliminated. Unrealised profits and losses anising on intragroup

transactions on items of property, plant and equipment and inventory acquired from other group entities are also eliminated.

Consolidation procedure:

{2) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the
subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated Financial § at the acquisition date.

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s in in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explaing

how to account for any related goodwill.
(¢) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from

intragroup transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and property plant & equipments, are eliminated in full)

Business acquisition and Goodwill

Busingss combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method or pooling of interest method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, For each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets,

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The acquired p is idered sut ive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the inputs acquired include an
organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing cutputs and is
considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisition method
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:
(1) fair values of the assets transferred;

(i} liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

(it} equity interests issued by the Group; and

(iv) fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangs

The excess of the

(i) consideration transferred;

(i) amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

(iii) acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying
reasons for elassifying the business combination as a bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, guodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated inpairment losses. For the purpose of impainment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Companies cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired.




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UT2900DL2M1PTC225614
Notes te Consolidated fi ial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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d)

¢)

Pooling of Interest method

Ind AS 103, Business Combinations, prescribes significantly different accounting for business combinations which are not under common control and those under common
control. Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control shall be accounted for using the pooling of interest method.

The pooling of interest method is considered to involve the following:

1) The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts,

ii) No adjustments are made to reflect fair values or recognize any new assets or liabilities. The only adjustments that are made are to harmonies accounting policies.

iii) The financial information in respect of prior years should be restated as if the business combination had oceurred from the beginning of the preceding year in the consolidated
financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the business combination,

v} The identity of the reserves has been preserved and appear in the financial infi ion of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the finaneial information of
the transferor.

v) The difference, if any, between the consideration and the amount of share capital of the acquired entity is transferred to capital reserve.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the principles of Ind AS requires the management to make judgemenis, estimates and assumptions that effect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on
the management’s best knowladge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

In particular, information about the significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and eritical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounis recognised in the consolidated financisl statements are disclosed in note No. 26.

Current versus Non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is freated as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

ifi) It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a Hability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

i) Tt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no uncenditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

The operating cycle {s the time hetween the acquisition of assets for pracessing and fhair realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Foreign Currencies

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s enlities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the
functional currency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupes (Rs.), which is the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical
reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average approximates the exchange rates at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date,

Exchange differences arising on settl or translation of y items are recognised in profit and loss with the exception of the following:

i) In the financial statements that include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., financial statements when the foreign operation is a branch), such exchange differences
are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit and loss on disposal of the net inv

if) Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCL

Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foveipn currency are tanslated using the exchange rates al the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monctary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non:
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (ie., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively.

Foreign subsidiaries
The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the
pr i y are lated into the ion currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet

- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates p
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and

- All resulting exchange differences are 1 ised in other comprehensive income,

o i

g on the t
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f

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments (recorded at fair value through P&L or OCI) at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

1) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

if) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is d using the ptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or Kability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest, '

A fair value of a non-f ial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best uge,

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

ii) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest Jevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

i) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of external valuers is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and complexity
involved. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group's
accounting policies. For this analysis, the team verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets and liabilities is also compared with relevant extemnal sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant
and equipment. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.
On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2021 measured as per the

previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment, Depreciation on all property plant and equipment are provided on a written
down value based on the estimated useful life of the asset, which is as fallows:

Category of asset Useful Lives (Years)
Office Equipment 5

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Computers 3

Mobiles 5

Plant and Machinery 10

Electrical Installations 10

Leasehold improvements are amortised over life based on lease period

The management has estimated the useful lives and residual values of all property, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives based on management’s technical assessment of
their respective economic useful lives. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro‘rata basis from the date of purchase of the assets. Individual assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal procesds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.
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h)  Intangible assets
Goodwill represents the cost of acquired busi as established at the date of acquisition of the business in excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when cvents or circumstances indicate that the
implied fair value of goodwill is less than the carrying amount.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of i ible assets d in a busi combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition.
Following initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumnlated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development casts, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or Ioss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,
Intangible assets (other than those acquired in business combination) with finite lives are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life being 3 years,
All Intangible assets (other than goodwill) are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation year and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of cach reporting year. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation year or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.
An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the récipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
Intangible assets acquired in busi combination, include technology platform, Customer relationship and non-compete which are amortised on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful life which is as follows:
Nature of asset Useful Lives (Years)
Technology platform 7
MNeon Compete fee 3
Customer relationships 7

i) Leases
On initial application of Ind AS 116, the Group has adopted modified retraspective approach and has recognised Right of use asset and lease liability on initial application at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at as at April 01,2021,
The Group assesscs at contract inception whether a contract s, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.
Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilitics
to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
i) Right of use assets
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accunulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any t of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated usefil lives of the assets.
“If ownership of the leased asset transfers 1o the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (r) Impairment of non-financial assets.”
if) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value g The lease pay also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
pay of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index ora
rate are recognised as expenses {unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event ot condition that triggers (he payment occurs.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lsase is
not readily determinable. After the c t date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if thete is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
iii} Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption lo its properties (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or fess from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option), Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

i) Inventories

Inventories comprise of mainly packaging material which are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes the cost of purchase, duties, taxes (ather than those
recoverable from tax authorities) and other cost incurred in bringing the iiventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out basis.
Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and those necessary to make the sale.
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k)

Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue primarily stems from its innovative merchant solutions deeply rooted in cutting-cdge technology, These merchant solutions revolve around shipping,
fulfillment and conversion technology, serving as a bridge connecting retailers, carriers, and consumers on both national and international fronts, The Group's advanced technology
plays a pivotal role in powering shipping and fulfillment for SMEs, D2C retailers, and social commerce sellers, while also offering a comprehensive technology stack for retailers
to seamnlessly integrate their shopping websites or their other channels for efficient inventory and order management,

Within the realm of merchant solutions, the Group generates revenue through a range of teclmology-driven services. This includes one-time setup fees, subscription charges,
platform fees and value-added services, as well as revenue derived fromh shipping and logistics solutions, payment management, and state-of-the-ant fulfillment solutions. The
Group's principal method of charging its revenue is on a pay-for-use model i.e. the Group monetises its products or services on @ per-transaction basis, These technology-driven
services are strategically designed to empower and aptimize merchants' use of the tech-based platform, ultimately constituting a significant portion of the Group's overall revenue.
Arrangements with merchants do not provide the merchants with the right to take possession of the software supporting the Group's hosting platform at any time and are therefore
accounted for as service contracts. The Group recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised services to its customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services by applying the following steps:

+Identify the contract with a customer

¢ldentify the performance obligations in the contract

*Determine the transaction price.

»Allocate the transaction price and

*Recognize revenue when, or as, the Group satisfies a performance obligation,

The Group follows the guidance provided in IND AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with C , for d ining whether the Group is the principal or an agent in arrangements
with customers that involve another party that contributes to providing a specified service to a . In these inst the Group determines whether it has promised to
provide the specified service itself (as principal) or to arrange for the specified service to be provided by another party (as an agent). This determination depends on the facts and
circumstances of each arrangement.

GST collected from merchants and remitted to government authorities are excluded from revenue.

The Group determines the price for each performance obligation based on observable consolidated selling prices. consolidated selling prices are determined considering pricing
objectives, market conditions, discounting practices, ion size, customer demographics, geography, price lists, and go-to-market strategy. This determination involves
management consultation and approval. Changes in go-to-market strategivs may lead to adjustments in consolidated selling prices. Payment is generally received upon invoicing,
with payment terms varying by contract type but usually requiring payment within 30 days of the invoice date. The Group also allows its merchants to maintain advances, The
contracts do not involve significant financing components when there are timing differences between revenue recognition, invoicing, and payment,

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The Group considers
whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the
transaction price for the sale of goods, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and
consideration payable to the customers (if any).

Dividend

Dividend income is recopnized when the Group's right to receive dividend is established by the reporting date.

Interest

Interest income is recognized when it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the Group and amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is recognized
using the effective interest method.

Contract balances

The Policy for Contract balances i.e. contract assets, trade receivables and contract liabilities is as follows:

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services transferred to the customer (which consist of unbilled revenue). If the Group performs by transferring services
toac before the ¢ pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is unconditional.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).
Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is dug) from the customer. Ifa
customer pays consideration before the Group transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Employee benefits
Provident fund & MNational Pension Scheme

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund and national pension scheme ( NPS) is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other than the contribution
payable to the provident fund/NPS. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme/NPS as an expense, when an employee renders the related service, If
the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess
is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.
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m)

Gratuity

Gratuity liability is a defined henefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability are recognised immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through OCI in the year in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit and loss on the earlier of:

i} The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

ii) The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is caloulated by applying the discount ratc to the net defined benefit liability. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the statement of profit and loss:
i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

it} Net interest exnense
Lenve encashment

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences
as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement that has accumulated at the reporting date. The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term
employee benefit as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Short-term :

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that ave expected to be scttled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961
and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards ("ICDS"} enacted in India by using tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss (gither in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.. Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance
sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends to settle the asset and liability
on anet basis.

Deferred taxes
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and lizbilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax lishilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

i) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax Josses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the camry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

i) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be wilised. Unrecopnised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecied to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacled at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current fax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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n)

o)

]

q)

Share based payments

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding i increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over the year in which the performance and/or service conditions

are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The it <p recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting year has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or cradit for
a year represents the mo in lative expense gnised as at the beginning and end of that year and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best esti of the ber of equity i that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions, Nonvesting conditions are reflected
in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met, An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

For cancelled options, the payment made to the employee shall be ac ted for as a deduction from equity, except to the extent that the payment exceeds the fair value of the
equity instruments of the Group, d at the llation date. Any such excess from the fair value of equity instrument shall be recognised as an expense.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is

d as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted eamings per share.

Segment reporting

In accordance with Ind AS 108, Segment Reporting, Segments are identified based on the manner in which the Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM®) decides about resource
allocation and reviews performance. Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly atiributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis.

The Group has identified only one reportable business segment as it deals mainly in merchant solutions.

Earning per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit and loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity and compulsorily convertible preference shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of caleulating diluted eamnings per
share, the nel profit and loss for the period atlibutable w eyuity shareholders and the weighted i ber of shares o ling during the period are adjusted for the cffccts
of all dilutive potential equity shares,

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in
the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a curren! pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised 2s a finance cost.

Contingent linbilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one are more
uncertain future events not wholly within the contrel of the Group, or is a present obligation that arises from past event but is not recognised because either it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to set{Ie the obligation, or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed and not recognised.
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r)

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
i) Financial assets

The Group classified its financial assets in the following measurement categories ;-
= Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or through profit & loss)
* Those measured at amortized cost

Initial recognition and measurement ;

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value except for Trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement : B

For purposes of subseg , fi ial assets are classified in three categories:
(i} At amortized cost

(i) At fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

(1ii) At fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI™)- Equity Instruments

At amortized cost

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and the
asset’s contractual cash flows represent Sole Payment of Principal and Interest ("SPPI") This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial
assels are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the elective interest rate ("EIR") method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discount the esti 1 future cash ipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, whers appropriate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, When calculating the EIR the Group estimate the expected cash flow by
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

At FVTOCI

A financial assets is subsequently measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business modal whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are SPP! on the principal amount owstanding, All equity investments in
scope of Ind AS 109 are measured a fair value, The Group has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income all subsequent changes in the fair value.
The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 1f the Group decides to classify an equity
instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit
and loss, even on sale of investment, However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and loss.

AtFVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category. Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCLs classified as at FVTPL

Derecognition
The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the eash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for
derecognition under Ind AS 109,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit losses ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and
credit risk exposure

» Financial assets measured at amortized cost;

» Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);

The Group follows “simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Under

the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the time of initial revenue
recognition. The Group uses & provision matrix to detenming impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on the historically
observed default rates over the expected life of various categories of trade receivables and these are updated and changed based on forward looking estimates at every reporting
date. For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime
ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
Group reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.
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s)

f)

(i} Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group's financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payable, trade deposits, retention money and other payables. The
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables
These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid, The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period,

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for rading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near tem. Gains or losses on liabilities held for rading
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date
of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR. amortization process. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Group's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial lisbilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabilities if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU excesds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In derermining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, Ifno such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available
fair value indicators,

The Group bases its impai leulation on detailed budgets and forecast calenlations, which are prepared separately for each of the Group™s CGUs to which the individual
assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of ten years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project
future cash flows after the tenth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow
projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the
long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries m which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

'+

t losses are recognised in the t of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impaitment losses no longer
exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the camrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balance

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value, For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Treasury shares
The Group has created an Employee Stock Option Plan Trust (ESOP Trust). The Group uses ESOP trust as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees under the employee stock
option schemes. The Group treats ESOP trust as its extension and shares held by ESOP trust are treated as treasury shares,

Own equity instruments that are held by the trust are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. Mo gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments, Any difference between the carrying amount and the ideration, if reissued, is recognised in the other equity.
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23

Events occurring after the balance sheet date

Based on the nature of the event, the Group identifies the events occurring between the balance sheet date and the date on which the consolidated financial statements are approved
as 'Adjusting Event’ and ‘Non-adjusting event’. Adjustments to assets and liabilities are made for events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional information
materially affecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date or because of statutory requirements or because of their special nature,
For non-adjusting events, the Group may provide a disclosure in the consolidated financial statements considering the nature of the transaction,

Recent accounting pronouncements, to the extent applicable to the Group

Recent ac ing prone to the extent applicable to the Group. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Group has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the consolidated

financial statements,

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Group has evaluated the amendment
and there is no impact on its consolidated financial statements,

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes
This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences.
The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023, The Group has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its

Tidatad f
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(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated) i

(ii} The table below provides details regarding the ageing for Capital work-in-progress :

As at March 31, 2023
Amount in CWIP in a period of
Particulars Asat
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Mareh 31, 2023
Projects in Progress 49.27 - - 4927
Projects Temporarily suspended - - = . i
Total 49.27 - - - 4927
As at March 31, 2022
Amount in CWIP in a period of
Paxtienlars Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Marc_z;:t 2022
Projects in Progress - =) - & =
Projects Temporarily suspended 4 & » "
Total - - - - H
As at April 1, 2021
Amount in CWIP in a period of
ol Less than 1 year | 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Aprgr;?; 021
Projects in Progress - - : = ¥
Projects Temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - - - 2 &

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UT2900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Consclidated fi ial stat for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

4a Right-of-use assets (refer note 30)

Gross Block Amount

Balance as at April 1, 2021 2529
Additions Consequent to Business combination of Subsidiary (refer note 40) 149.43
Additions 208.07
Balance as at March 31, 2022 382.79
Additions Consequent to Consolidation of Suhsidiaries (refer note 404) 97.30
Additions 676.82
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,156.91

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2021 i
Amortisation expense 30.14

Balance as at March 31, 2022 30.14
Amortisation expense 157.21
Balance as at March 31, 2023 187.34

Carrying amount

Balance as at April 1, 2021 25,29
Balance as at March 31, 2022 352.64
Balance as at March 31, 2023 969.56

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(AR amounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

5 Investments in associates

Asat As at As at
March31.2023  March31,2022 __ April 01,2021
Non current
(A) Investment in associates
Ungquoted Equity Shares
Laogibricks Technologies Private Limited 296 850 "
(52,100 {March 31, 2022 - 52,100, April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face valire of Rs 10 each fully paid up) 2
Less: Provision for impai in value of | t i Logibricks Technologies Private Limited (Refer note 24.1) (5.96)
Thnquoted Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
Logibricks Technologies Private Limited 102.63 103.10 .
[632,121 (March 31, 2022 - 632,121, April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up] : i
Less: Provision for impai in value of T in Logibricks Technologies Private Limited (Refer note 24.1}
(102.63) - =
Total - 111.60 -
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 11160 11160 -
Aggregate amount of i in value of i {Refer note 24.1) (101,60} - -
6 Financial Assets
6(1) Investments
As at Asat As at
March 31, 2023 Iarch 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

Non current
{A) Other Investments (valued at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income) [FVTOCE]
Unquoted equity shares
Mirmalaya Wellness Private Limited a1
(9 {March 31, 2022 - Nal; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up] 3 " -
Unquoted Compulsorily C ible Preference Shaves (CCPS)
Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited 295 295 .
(44 (March 31, 2022 - 44; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up] ’ '
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income (2.95) - ”
Almo Man Private Limited 5.00 500 F
[1,122 (March 31, 2022 - 1,122, April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs, 10 each fully paid up) ¥ 3
Add: fair valus through other comprehensive income (5.00) = E
Eat Better Ventures Private Limited b - i
[260 (March 31, 2022 - 260, April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs, 10 each fully paid up] : .
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income (5.00) ® =
Climb Foods Private Limited 052 05 =
[54 (March 31, 2022 - 54; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs, 100 each fully paid up] : '
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income (0.52) - &
Oddity Healtheare Private Limited 501 501 A

[118 (March 31, 2022~ 118; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]
Add; fair value through other comprehensive income {5.01) = =
Woavly India Private Limited 2070 20.70 .
(197 (March 31,2022 - 197; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

Add: fair value through other comprehensive income (20.70) = =
Evenflow Brands Tech Private Limited

[45 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up] a8 = "
Slick Organics Private Linited 10.00 " i
[455 (March 31, 2022 - Nil, Apnl 1, 2021 - Nil} shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

Nirmalaya Wellness Private Limited 750 " g
{45 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil} shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up] z

Chipper consumer Private Limited 487 . .
[190 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares 4t face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

Mano Phyto Care Private Limited 2.50 = =
[200 (March 31, 2022 - Nil, April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

FDM Digitzl Solutions Private Limited 500 " =
[200 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

Happytizers Private Limited 503 . "
[140 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil} shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up]

Lawriko Private Limited 420 y .
{142 (March 31, 2022 - Nk, April 1, 2021 « Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up)

Shoprtv Private Limited

[155,660 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April |, 2021 - Nil) shares at face value of Rs. 100 cach fully prid up] L5AT - =
Add: fair value through other comprehensive income {15.57) -

Curvent
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Notes to C fidated fi ial for the year eoded March 31,2023

(All amounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

6(ii)

Current Investments (valued at fair value through Profit and Loss) [FVTPL]

(A) Investments in Mutual Funds

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liguid Fund Growth Direct Plan

194,398.57 units {March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nil) at NAV of Rs. 363,08 (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April 1, 2021 - Nib)
each

Kotak Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan

14,403.35 units (March 31, 2023 - Nil; Apail 1, 2021 - Nily at NAV of Rs, 4,548.41 (March 31, 2022 - Nil, April 1,2021 - Nit)
each

Tata Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan

18,443.77 units (March 31, 2022 - Nil, April 1, 2021 - Nil) at NAV of Rs, 3,551 .41 (March 31, 2022 - Mil; April 1,2021 - Nil)
each

ABSL Asbatrage Fund

Nil units (March 31,2022 - 6,573.18, Apnl 1, 2021 - 6,573,18) at NAV of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 206.51; April 01, 2021 -
Rs, 283.24) each

NIL units (Mar 2022: 4,09,034.384 units, April 01, 2021; NIL units) (@ Rs. NIL (Mar2022: Rs, 21.599, April 01, 2021: Rs. NIL)
of ABSL Arbitrage Fund Fund_Growth

NIL units (Mar 2022: 22,679.257 units, April 01, 2021; 78,757.021 units) {@ Rs. NIL (Mar 2022: Rs. 90,1896, April 01, 2021: Rs.
85.9043) of ABSL Corporate Bond Fund - Growth

141.225 units (Mar 2022: 141,225 units, April 01, 2021: 14,866.73 units) (@ Rs. 464.1 552 (Mar 2022: Rs. 440.3207, April 01,
2021: Rs. 4227062} of ABSL Savings Fund Retail Growth

MIL units (Mar 2022: 2,313.988 units, April 01, 2021: 47,322.471 units} @ Rs. NIL (Mar 2022; Rs. 34.2623, Apsil 01, 2021: Rs.
29.7253) of Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund

72,780.778 units (Mar 2022: 2,72,472 882 units, April 01, 2021: 2,72,472.882 units) @ Rs. 50.5295 {(Mar 2022. Rs. 47,7874,
April 01, 2021: Rs. 45 8632) ICICI Prudential Short Term Fund

467.752 units (Mar 2022; 467,752 units, April 01, 2021; 467,752 units) @ Rs. 23.6124 (Mar 2022: Rs. 22,4202, April 01, 2021:
Rs. 21.5663 ) ICICT Prudential Mutul Fund

57,735.433 units (Mar 2022: 2,78,252.352 umits, April 01, 2021: 2,78,252.353 units) (@) Bs, 48.1735(Mar 2022: Rs. 46 4728, April
01, 2021 Rs, 44,6658) of IDFC Bond Fund Short Term Plan

NIL units (Mar 2022; 3,76,532,222 units, April 01, 2021 3,76,532.222 units) @ Rs. NIL {Mar 2022; Rs, 42,5874, Apnil 01, 2021:
Rs. 40.8548) of Kotak Equity Arbitrape Fund

622.319 units (Mar 2022: 833.908 units, April 01, 2021 NIL units) @ Rs. NIL {Mar 2022; Rs §7.8568, April 01, 2021 Rs. NIL)
of Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund

Total

Non Current
Current

Aggrepate amount of unquoted investments at FVTOCL
Aggregate amount of queted invesiments at FVTPL

Trade receivables

Trade recaivables

Break-up of Trade Receivables:

Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables - credit impaired

All (aln for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total Trade Receivables

Set out below is the tin the all for expected credit losses of trade receivables:

Balances at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Balnnces at the end of the year

As at Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
70.58 - i
6551 - %
65.50 - g
E: 195 a
g 8.83 “
# 205 -
007 0.06 &
008 B
368 13.02 -
0.01 0.01 .
2.78 1293 -
0.00 16.04 -
0.06 0.07 -
255.18 94._2-‘ =
46.95 30.20 -
208.19 55.04 =
46,98 39.20 -
208.19 55.04 -
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01,2021
907.52 469.20 140,75
2_0‘.-".52 M 140.75
Asat Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
907.52 469,20 140,75
35146 144.18 B7.78
1, 458,08 613.38 128.53
(551.46) (144,18) (87.78)
007,52 469.20 140.75
As at Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
144.18 B7.78 37.93
407.28 56.40 49.85
S51.46 144.18 87.78
S
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Notes to Consolidated fi for the year ended March 31,2023

{All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Trade Reeeivables ageing schedule:

As at March 31, 2023
e

Ouistanding for following periods from transaction date
Particulars - Toial
Lenth NG L 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 yenrs =
months year
Undisputed Trade receivables ~ idered good 885.64 834 13.54 - - 207.52
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 120.78 304,43 121.03 522 - 551.46
Total 1,006.42 312.77 134.57 522 = 1,458.98
As at March 31, 2022
Quistanding for lollowing periads rom transaction date
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 T
citiths yeiit -2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Undisp Trade i - idered good 466 89 0.77 0.90 0.64 - 459,20
Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 215 55.95 B6.09 - - 144,18
46905 56.72 B6.99 0.64 - 613.38
As at April 1, 2021
Qutstanding for following periods from transaction date
Particulars A - Total
e Lasttliane ety 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years -
manths year
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 13939 1.36 - . - 14075
Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredit impaired 542 39.36 43.00 - - 87.78
Total 144.81 40.72 43.00 - - 228.53
Notes:
a) Mo trade or other ivable are due from di ar other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person, Nor any rade or other receivable are dus from firms or private
cotnpanies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director ora member Trade receivables are ton-interest bearing und are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
b) For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 34
c) Refer Note 6{vi) for unbilled receivables.
6{iii}) Cash and cash equivalents
Asat Asat Asat
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Balances with banks
— On current accoumts 393,24 165.55 12.00
- On current accounts for Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers 450,64 165.64 54.40
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 1204 1183 -
Cash on hand .00 010 .01
Total 855.94 343.12 66,43
6liv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Balances with banks:
- In Transit - 294 -
= Deposits wath orignal maturity for more than 3 months and wpte 12 months® 79.15 60.53 739.77
Total 79.15 63.46 739.77
Nates:
a) Deposits with banks are made for varying periods of between six months and two years, d ding on the diate cash req s of the Compatty, and earn interest at the respective short-

term daposit rates.

b) At 31 March 2023, the Company had available Rs. 82512 million {March 31, 2022 - Rs. 209,30 million; April 1, 2021 - Rs 166.90 million) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities

c} Fixed deposits lien of Rs. 2,711.83 million (March 31, 2022 - Rs, 209 30 million; Apnl 1,2021 - Rs. 166.90 million) marked for Kotak Mahindra Bank, ICICI Bank, HDFC Bank, Axis Bank, CITI

Bank, Yes Bank and American Express for ODFD and Corp Cradit card

ly.
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6{v) Other financial assets

Asat Asgat As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
—_——res TR JL, 2022 April 01,2021

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Non Current
1) Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 71.06 17.39 231
Unsecured, considered doubtful ) 1.25 1.25 125
Less: Allowance for doubtful deposits {1.25) {1.25) (1.25)
T1.06 17.3% 231
b} Advance for Invesiment in subsidiaries
Unsecured, considered good 300,00 - z
300.00 = =
b) Bank deposits®
With remaining maturity of more than 12 months 15757 9,744,35 1,066.70
157.57 9,744,385 L,065.70
) Interest Receivable
Interest accrued on deposits with banks 14.58 132.15 5.02
14.58 132,15 502
Total Other Non-current financial assets _543.21 __9803.58 1,074.04
Current
a) Security deposits
Unsecured, considersd good 5.83 0.70 -
5.83 0.70 -
b} Custract Assets - Unbilled Revenue
Unsecured, considered good (Refer note 15) 68577 38197 208.94
635,77 38197 208,94
¢) Bank deposits®
With remaining maturity of less than 12 months 6,340.86 2,684.25 -
6,340.86 2,684.25 -
d) Interest Receivable
Interest accrued on deposits with banks . 228.65 32569 1249
Loans to related parties -0.00 - -
218,65 32.69 12,49
) Other Receivables
Unsecured, considered goad 112.57 B7.67 7481
Receivables from related parties (note 34) - 000 -
Unsecured, considered doubtful 3902 6.92 -
Less: All for doubtfi ivahbl -39.02 6,92 =
11257 87.67 74.81
“Fotal Other curvent financial assets 7,373.68 3.187.29 296.34
*Note: Deposits with banks are made for varying periods depending upon the i fiate cash req of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates,
7 Inventories {At lower of Castor Net realisable value)
Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
—_— s Apridl, 2021
Traded goods (Packing Material) 12.13 873 222

12.13 873 222
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5  Income Tax Asseis (net)

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
MNon current
Advance Income Tax 17.14 19.47 -
Less: Provision for Income Tax - 2 =
Total Non current Tax Assets 17.14 19.47 -
=
Current
Advance Income Tax 29503 86.80 24.42
Less: Provision for Income Tax = = =
Total Curvent Tax Assels 295,03 50 24.42
——
2 Other assels
As at Asat Asat
' March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Non current
a) Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good 1.94 1159 -
1.94 11.99 -
by} Prepaid Expenses
Unsecured, considered good 0.06 -0.00 -
.06 -0.00 -
Total Other non-current assets 2.0l 11.99 -
Current
a) Advance to Suppliers
Unsecured, considered good $3.58 18.58 496
Unsecured, considerad doubtful 5229 - -
Less: Alk for doubtful (52.29) - -
83.58 18.58 4.96
b) Prepaid Expenses
Unsecured, considered good 3931 19.92 g.44
39.31 19.92 8.44
¢} Advance 1o Employee
Unsecured, considered good 1.55 0.66 -
L.55 0.66 -
d) Balances with Government authorities {net) 171.50 56.23 619
171.90 86.23 6.19
Total Other current assets . 296.35 125.3% 19.59

(This space has been mrentionally lefr blank}
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10 Share Capital

Dretails of share copital is o8 follows:

Asat Asat Agat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Authorfsed Share Capital
Equity Sharcs
H00,000 (March 31, 2022 - 3,00,000, April 1, 2021 - 4,50,000) Equity Shares of s, 10 each | #.00 500 4.50
Instroments Entirely Equoity in Natere
04,591 (March 31, 2022 - 94,591; Apeil 1, 2021 - 04,591} of 0.0001%% Compulsorily convertible proference shares serics A of Rs 10 ¢ach 045 095 a8
192,000 (March 31, 2022 - 1,92,000; April 1, 2021 - 192,000) of 0.0001% Compulsorily Cenvertible Preference Shares Senics B of Bs, 332.99 cach G393 6393 63.93
468488 (March 31, 2022 - 4,68, 458; April 1, 2021 - 468,485) of 0.0001% Compulsorily Conventible Preference Shares Serics B1 of Rs. 355 each 16631 166,38 166.31
280,000 (March 31, 2022 - 280,000 April |, 2021 - 280,000) of (.OM ¥ Campuimn]gr Convr.'mblc Preforonce Sharos Series C1 of Rs. 355 cach 9040 99,40 o 40
1,05 600 (March 31, 2022 - 1,05,000; Apnl 1, 2021 - 1,03,000) of 0.0001% Ct C F Shares Series C2 of Rs, 335 gach 37238 37.18 37.28
81,300 (March 31, 2022 - 81,504 April 1, 2021 - 81,500} of (:0001% Compalsaril ible Pref 8l Series C3 of Ra. 335 cach 28.93 2393 28.93
TR0L000 (Mareh 31, 2022 « 1, 80.000; April [, 2021- Nil) of 6.0001% Compadsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series D1 of Rs. 358 cach 63.90 6350 -
360,000 (March 31, 2022 - 3,00,000; April 1, 2021- Wil) of 0.0001% Compusorily Convenible Preference Shares Series E of Rs, 333 each 12780 127.80 -
BO,000 (March 31, 2022 Nik; April 1, 2021 Nil} of 0,0001% Compalsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series El of Bz, 355 ench 2840 - .
0,000 (Mareh 31, 2022 Nil; Apal [, 2021- Nil) of 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Serics E2 of Bs, 355 cach 3195 - -
Total G56.85 506,50 401,30
= Drbg the preylous yeor coded March 31 2023, the authonized share capital of the Cempany hos boer wereased fram Rs. 59650 million to Rs. 65685 million by nddmg 80,000 of D.0081% iy ible series E1
shares of Rs, 335 cach and 90,000 of (.0001% pubscrily ible scrics E2 p 1 of Rs. 355 cach,
Equity Shares
Tssued, subseribed and fully paid up
00,988 (March 31, 2022 - 4,27,246; April 1, 2021 - 427,146) Equity Shares of Rs, 10 cach 501 427 (Wil
Less: Buy-back of equity shares [Mil (Mareh 31, 2022 - 21 832; April 1, 2021 - Nil)] equity shares of Rs, 10 cach® 5 0.22) .
Less. Amount recoversble from ESOP's Trust [71,000 (March 31, 2022 - 71,000; April 1,2021 - 71,000) equity shares of Rs. 1/ cach allested
to the ESOP trust]* {713 0.71) (0.71)
(A) 430 334 356
ssued, Substribed but not fully paid shares
32,118 (March 31, 2022 - 32,115; Apnl 1, 2021 - Nil) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, Rs. 1 per share calied-up 003 0.03 -
iB) .03 003 T
Total ’ (CmA+E) 333 338 35
Compalsorily Convertible Preference shares
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
M0 T %o lsoriby Comvertible Pref sharcs Serics A
90,781 {March 31, 2022 - 90,781; Apcil 1, 2021 - 90,781) Compulsorily Convertible Preferescs Share of Rs. 10 cach 41 091 091
.0001% Compulsarity Convertible Preference shares Serics B
190,843 (March 31, 2022 - 191,845, Apil 1, 2021 - 1,91 843) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.332.99 cach 63.88 G388 63,48
{1 ({H1 ¥ Compullsorily Converdible Preference shares Serics B
468 381 (March 31, 2022 . G68,381; April 1, 2021 - 468,381} Compulsonly Convertible Preferance Shares of R 355 cach 166,28 13628 166,28
01,0001 % Coanpulsorily Comvertible Preference shases Series Cl
246,233 (March 31, 2022 - 246,253, April | 2021 - 2,46,233} Compulsorily Convertible Prefecence Shares of Rs, 335 each B742 B7.A42 8742
(0.00H01 % Compulsarily Convertible Preference shares Series C2
94,968 (March 31, 2022 - 94,968; April 1, 2021 - 94,968) Compulsorily Converiible Preference Shares of Rs. 333 each 337 337 3371
O.0001% Compulsarily Convertible Proference shares Series C3
#1,395 (March 31, 2022 . 817395 April 1 2021 - R1 305} Compaulenrily Convertibile Prolarosca Sharee af Re 355 cach 2890 W90 2850
R0 %o C lsorily Convertible Pref T Series D1
167,148 (March 31, 2022 - 157,148; Apeil 1, 2021 - Hil) Compulsorily C ible F Shases of Rs, 355 each 50.34 59.34
0.0801% Compulsarily Convertible Preference shares Seriss E
349,207 (March 31, 2022 - 349,207; April 1 2021 - Nil) Compulsorily Convertible Preference Sharcs of Rs, 355 cach 123,97 12397 -
B.000 1% Compulsarily Converlible Preference shares Scrics EI
Mil (March 31, 2022- Nil; April 1, 2021- Nil) of 0.0001% Campulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series EL of Rs 353 ench * & %
(0RO % Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares Series E2
59,793 (March 31, 2022 Mil; April 1, 2021- Nif) of 0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Prelerence Shares Series E2 of Rs. 355 cach 2123 E -
Total ) SH5.63 564,40 38109
Total Issued Share Capital (E=C+D) £89.96 S567.78 3B4.66
* The Company has created an ESOP Trust for providing sharc based to its employees. The Company treats the trust as ils extension and shares held by trust sre treated os irepsury shares, Own equity instrumcnts thot ore

d {treasury chares) ized at cost and deducied from equity share capital .

# Duging the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has conchaded (he buyback of 21,832 equily shares at o price of Rs. 34,028,48 per equity share ("Buybock") as approved carlier by the Board of Dircetors on February 24, 2022
Buyback was completed an March 13, 2022 and the equity shares bought back were extinguished oa March 13, 2022, Totlal outflow of Rs. 742.91 million has been etilized from the share capital and sceuritics premium, i line with the
requircment under the Companics Act, 2013, Further, tax on Buyback and Buyback related expenses ansounting 1o Rs. 173,02 million and Bs. 1 20 million respectively have alse been uiilized from Securilics Premium, Additionally, Capital
Redemplion reserve of Ra, 0.22 millien (equivalent to nominel value of the equity shares bought back) hes been ereoted out of Surplus/{Defizit) in the statcmont of Profit and Lass, in lino with the requirement urdor the Companies Act,
2013. Consequent to extinguishinent of shores so bought back, the paid vp equaty share capital has been reduced by Rs. 0.22 million.
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{h) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Compiny

: As at March 31, 2023 As ut March 31, 2012 As at April 01, 2021
1 of §h : 2 Lt bl T

S & Nomeal Shnceloldee Number Y4 of holding ber % ol holding Namber % oF halding
Equity shores

Gautam Kapoor 1,15,865 2L.73% 115,865 26.48% 120,799 28.28%

Sazhil Goel 115,866 21.73% 115,866 26,48% 120,799 28.28%
Vishesh Khurana 15,557 4.79% 25587 5.84% 27,622 6.47%

ESOPs Trust 116,511 21.86% 116511 26.63% 1,43,429 33,5850

Arvind Limited 37,044 695% a = , -

0.0001% Cy Convertible Prefi Shares Serics A

Tribe Capital I, LLC, Serics | 48,258 S316% 48,258 53.16% 48,258 53.16%

Tribe Capital HI, LLC, Serics § 22,616 2491% 22616 24.51% 13,616 24.91%
Bertelsmann Nederland BV, 19907 211.93% 192,907 21.93% 19,907 21.93%

As at March 31, 2023 eyt As i March 31, 2022 Asat Apreil 011, 2021
L& N T Sh
Uir e Nameor hrsioidos Number % of holding___ Number % of folding Number % of holding

0.0001% Compaulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series B
Mirvana Digital nvesinsent Holding Lid 0,727 1080 20,727 10.90% 69,894 36.43%
Tribe Capital Ill, LLC, Serics § 54,788 18.56% 54,788 28.56% 54,748 28.56%
Mirvana Digital India Fund - (00 - LR 25767 13.43%
Bertelsmamn Nederland B Y. . 34809 18.14% 34,509 18.14% 13375 12.18%

Info Edge Venures 22,369 11.52% 11869 1.92% = -
Zomato Linvited 21,832 11.38% 21,832 1138% - -
Paypal Tnc 11,434 5.06% 11,434 5.06% - s
(L.0001% Compulserily Convertible Preference Shares Series B1

Bestelsmann Mederland BV, 241423 51.54% 241,423 S1-34% 141423 52.59%
Tribe Capital I, LLC, Series § 63367 14 924 69,867 14.92% 69,867 1522%
Mirvana Digital Investment Halding Lid 56,892 12.15% 56,892 12155 56,892 1239%%
MCF3 SPV LLC 40,906 8.73% 40,906 3.73%% 40,906 §91%
Nirvaria Digital India Fund 25,281 EX 2528} §40% 8830 6.2
0.0001% Compulserily Convertible Preference Shares Series L1

Bertelamann Nederfand BV, 192,112 TR0 192,112 TEDI% 192,112 TROI%
Tribe Capital 111, LLC, Series | 28915 11.74% 28915 HL74% RIS L1.74%
Nirvann Digital India Fund 19,220 TR 19,220 T80 19,220 7.50%
0.0001% Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares Serics €2

Bertelsnsson Mederland BV, 27,734 20.20% 37734 20204 17,734 220%
Tribe Capital 1], LLE, Series | 67,234 70300 67,234 F080% 67,234 T0.80%
0.0001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Serics C3
MCF3 5PV LLC 43411 §3.33% 43,411 53.33% 43411 5333%
Tribe Capital I, LLC, Scrics 5 37984 46.67%% 37084 A6.67% 37,984 4667
0.0001 % Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares Series D1

MCPF3 5PV LLC 20,679 15.96% 26,679 15.96% - -
Tribe Capital [T, LLC, Sorics T Partners 21,344 12.77% 21344 12,774 - -
Paypal Inz 53359 31.92% 33389 31.92% - -
Brriclsmann Nederload B.V, ; 53,359 3.52% 53,359 31.92% - =
0.0001%% Campulsority Convertible Preference Shares Series E
Zomalo Limited 1308z T8 132,082 37.82% - -
MacRitchic Investments Pre, Lid 108,059 31.23% 109,059 31.23% = #
LR India Fund [ S.0.r1., SICAV-RAIF 69,861 20,01% 2861 20.01% - -
0.0001 % Comp ily Ci ible P Shares Series E2
MacRizehie Investments Pic. Ltd 17,283 28 90% - * - =
LR ndia Fund [ S.arl, SICAV-RAIF 17975 30.06% - = - *
Bertelsmenn Nederlond BV, 8,987 15.03% - - - -
MCP3 SPV LLC 4,494 T.52% = - = -
Moaore Strategie Ventures LLC 3957 1509 . - - -

(e} Terms! rights attnehed to Equity shures
The Company has oaly one elass of equity shares having par value of Rs, 10 per share. Egel holder of equity shares 15 entilod to one voie per share. In the event of liguidatien of the Company, the bolders of cquity shares will be antitled to
reccive remaining assels of e company, afler distribution of 02l prof Eamount. The distribution will be i propartion 1o the equity sheres held by the sharcholders
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(1)) Terms/ rights attached to Instruments enticely equily in natare

0.0001% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares- Serics A (Fuce Vilue- Rs. 10}

Series A CCPS may at auy Gime be, fully or panly convericd into equity shares at the sole aption and diseretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of 1 (One) fally paid eeuity share per 1 (One) Series A CCPS.

Serics A CCPS will carry vating rights pari-passu with (i equity shares, on an as-f converted basis.

Series A OCPS shall have a maxinum maturity period of 19 (Mineteen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the serics A CCPS shall compulsorily sad automatically covert into cquity shargs.

The CCPS shmlmld:xshn“: ng!u to receive dividend prier to equity share holders, The Serics A CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per ammem. In addition to the above, the holders of each of the Serics A COPS are
entitlod to such prop ds as distributed 16 the othor Sharchalders of the Company, determined ca a Fully Diluted Basis

In cvent of llqmd:llm. Pari passu with the payment of the amounis to the helders of Serics A Prefercnce Shares, each af the holders of ke Serics A Preference Shares will be entitled to recaive (in praf 1o any equity sharcholder), an
st equal o the higher of: () a pro rata portion of the procteds of fhe Liquidation Event based on the sharchelding of such holder of Series A Preference Sharcs i the Company on  fully diluted basis: znd (b) one times the Subssription
Price on each Series A Prference Share held by suel holder phis any declored but unpaid dividonds.

00001 % Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares- Series B (Face Yalue- R, 332.99)

Series B CCPS may at sy time be, fully or partly converied info equity shares at the sole eption and dissretion of the CCPS halder, at the rate of 1 (Oue) lally paid equity share per | (Ong) Serics B CCPS,

Seres B CCPS will carry vating rights pari-passu with the cquity shares, on an as-if converied basis.

Series BCCPS shall have & imaximum maturity period of 19 (Mineteen) years [rons the date of their issuance, on the axpiey of which, the series B CCPS shall compulserily and antomatically covert into cquity shares,

The CCPS WNholdcrs have riglt o rwcwu dlwdend pior Lo equily share holders. The Senes B CCPS Imrs a camulative dividend rate oF 0 0001%: por anmem Tn pddition 10 the above, the helders of each of the Seriss B CCPS are
entitled to such divideads ns disiributed to the ather Sharchplders of the Compaiyy, d ined on a Fully Diluied Basis,

In event of liquidation, after the payment of amounts (o the holders of Series B CCPS, each of the holders of the Serics B Preference Shares will be entitled to receive (in prof: 10 sty equity shareholder), an amount equal to the kigher
of: {2} o pro rata partion of the proceeds of tie Liguidation Event based an the sharchelding of such holder of Series B Preference Sharcs in the Company on a Tally-diluted basis; and (b} ote times the Subseripiion Price on each Serics B
Preference Share lokd by such holder plus any declared but ungaid divideads,

0.0001% Cemulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Series Bl (Face Value- Rs. 155)

During the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company issucd fully paid up and subscribed 4,68,381 nos 0.0001% Cumulative Compulsary Conventible Prefesence Sharcs {CCFS)- Serics Bl of Facs Valeo of Rs, 355 (Rupees Three Husdred
Fifly Five) each ot premium of Rs. 727.22 each,

Series Bl CCPS may at any time be, fully or panily converted into equity shares at the sole aption and diseretion of the CCPS holder, ot the rate of | (One} fully paid equity share per | {One) Series B CCPS.

Seties Bl CCPS will camy voting rights pari-passi wills the equity shares, on an as«if converied basis,

Series Bl CCPS shall have o maximun matarity pesiod of 19 (Nineteen) years from the dato of their issiance, on the expiry of which, the scrics BL CCPS shall compulsarily and automsatically covert into equily shores.

“The CCFS sharcholders have nghl 1o mcmednwnd prior 1o equity share holders The Series Bl CCPS bears a cummlative dividend rate of 0.0001% per ansum. In addition to the above, the holders of each of the Series BI CCPS ane
enlitled to such proporti da as distributed (o the other Sharchold £ the Company, d icd on a Fully Dikated Basis,

In event of liquidation, Each of the holders of the Series BI CCPS will be entitled to recaive (in prefe to any equity sharehobder), an amoust cqual to the higher of: {3) 2 pro rala portion of the procceds of the Liquidatien Event based
ot Uz sharsholding of soch bolder of Serics BI CCPS in tle Comgany ona fully diluted basis; asd {b) onc times the Subscription Price on cach Series B1 CCPS beld by such holder plus any declared but unpaid dividends.

L.0091% Cumulative Ce sory Convertille Pref Shares - Series C1 {Face Value- Rs, 355)

During the year ended March 51, 201¥, the Company issusd Tully paid up and subiseribed 2,456,253 nos 0.0001% Cumlative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)- Series €1 of Face Valoe of Rs. 355 (Rupees Threa Hundred
Fifly Five) ¢2ch ot a premium of Rs. 727.22 sach,

Series C1 CCPS may at any lime be, fully or partly converted into equity shares at the sele option and discretion of the CCPS holder, at the rute of 1 (Ong) fully paid cquity share per 1 (Onc) Serigs C1 CCPS,

Serigs C1 CCPS wall carry voting rights pari-passu with the equity shares, on an as-if convericd basis,

Series C1 CCPS shall have a maxinim matority period of 19 (Ninctean) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiny of which, the series €1 CCPS shall eompulserily and automatically covert into squity shares.

The CCFS sharchobders have right 1o receive dividend prioe 1o equity share holders  The Sorics ©1 CCPS bears a cuntulative dividend rat of 000001% per annun. In addition 16 the sbove, the kolders of each of the Series C1 CCPS are
cntitled to such proparti dividends as distribuled to the other Sharchelders of the Company, d 4 on a Fully Diluted Basis.

In event of liquidation, Each of the holders of the Series C1 CCPS will be entitled to recsive (in p to any equily sharehalder), an amount cqual o the higher off (a) a pro ratn portion of the procesds of tlhe Liguidation Event based
an the sharcholding of such holder of Serics C1 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basis; and (k) anc tines the Subscription Prics on each Series €1 CCPS held by such holder plus any destared but wnpaid dividends.

0.0001% Cumnulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Series C2 (Face Value- Rs. 355)

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Compary issued fully paid up and subscribed 94,968 nos 0.0001% Cumultive Compulsary Convertible Frof: Sharcs (CCPS)- Series C2 of Face Valus of Rs, 355 (Rupees Three Hundred
Fifty Frve) cach &t a premivm of Rs, 3560 cacl.

Series C2 CCPS miay at any tiiug be, fally or pastly converied inte equity shares ot the sole option and discretion of the CCPS holder, at the 1ate of 1 (One) fully paid equity share per 1 (Dng) Series C2 CCPS,

Series C2 CCPS will carry voting rights pari-passu with the equity shares, on an as-if converted basis.

Series C2 CCPS shall hove o maximum maturily period of 19 (Nineteen) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series C2 CCPS shall compulsorily and automatically covertinto equity shases.

The CCPS sharcholdors have right te recaiv dlwdcmi prlo( ID oqm!y share holders The Scries C2 CCPS bears o cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per ancaun. ln addition te the above, the bokders of each of the Series C2 CCPS are
entitled (g such i dividends as distrit d of the Company, determined on a Fully Dilated Basis.

T wvet ol liguishtivn, Eucly of 1he holders of the Series C2 CCPS will be entitled 10 reczive {in p 1o Ay equity ), am amoued cqual to the higher of: (a) & pro rata portion of the proceeds of the Liqusdalion Event based
o Ihe sharehalding of such holder of Series C2 CCFS in the Couspany on a fully dilied bosis; nnd (b} one times the Subseription Price on ench Series C2 CCPS held by such holder plus ony declared but unpaid dividends.

L0001 % C) ive © ¥ ible Preference Shares - Serics C3 (Fuee Valoe- Rs. 355)

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company issucd fully paid up and subscribed 81,395 rios 0,0001% C ive Compulsory Ci ible Frefe Shares (CCPS)- Senies C3 of Foce Valoe of Rs. 355 (Rupees Three Hundeed
Fifty Five) cach 2t a premiium of Rs, 5,447 93 each,

Series C3 CCPS may at any time be, fully or partly converted inlo equity shares al the sol: option and diszretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of 1 (One) fully paid cquily share per 1 {One) Series C3 CCPS.

Series €3 CCPS will carry veting rights pari-passu with the equity shores, on an es-if converted basis.

Series €3 CCFS shall have a maximuam maturily period of 19 (Mincleon) vears frony the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the serics C3 CCPS shall and covert into equity shares.

The CCPS sl\nlv.'.hold.u's havg nglll 1o receive dividend prior 1o un!l)- share bolders . The Senies C3 CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum. [n addition to the above, the holders of sach of the Serics €3 CCPS are
entitied to such prop divideids ns distributed o the other Sharchelders of the Company, deterived on a Fally DlFul.cd Basis,

In gvent of liguidation, Each of the holders of the Series €3 CCPS will be entitled 1o recei I Lo any cquity holdzr), an amount equal 1o the higher of: (23 4 pro rata portion of the procesds of the Liquidation Event baced
on the sharchalding of such holder of Series C3 COPS in (e Company on a fully dikuizd basis, and (b) one limes e Subscription Price on cach Serics C3 CCPS beld by such holder plus any declared but unpaid dividends.

00001 % Comulative Ci Isory Ci ihle Pref Shares - Serics D1 {Face Valse- Ry, 355)

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company issued fully paid up and subseribed 167,148 nos 0.0001% Ci ive Compulsary Ci ible Preference Shares (CCPS)- Seties DI of Face Value of Rs. 355 [Rupses Three
Hundred Fifly Five) cach at a premium of Re. 13,462.92 each.

Series L1 CUPS may at any time be, fully or partly coaverted into equity shares at the solt oplion and diszretion of the CCPS bolder, at the rate of 050 {One-half) fully paid equity share per 1 {Onc) Scries DI CCPS,

Series D1 CCPS will carry voting rights pasi-passu with the cquity shares, on an as-if converted basis,

Series Dl CCPS shall have a maximun maturity period of 19 {Minetesn) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the serics D1 COPS shall compulserily snd automatically covert info cquity shares.

The CCRS shnrwntders have nght l.o rwe!w: dividend prior to equity share holders The Series DI CCPS bears o cunulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per amum. In addition to the sbove, the lolders of cach of the Serizs D1 CCP3 are
entitled to such a5 distributed to the other Sharcholdzrs of the Company, determined onva Fully Diluted Basis.

In event of liguidation, Eachof the holders of the Series D CCPS will be entithed 1o regeive {in pref to any equity sharehiolder), an amouat equal 1o the higher ol (a) a pro rata portion of the procesds of the Liguidation Event based
on the sharcholding of such holder of Series D CCPS in the Company e a fully diluted basis; and (b) anc tfimes the Subscription Price on cach Series D'l CCPS held by such holder plus any deslared bat unpaid dividends,

00001 % Cumulative Compulsory Corvertible Preference Shures - Serivs E (Fuce Value- Rs, 355,

During the yenr ended March 31, 2023, the Company issued filly paid up and subseribed 333,925 nos 0.0001% Cumulative Compulsory Cenvertible Preference Shares (CCPS)- Series E of Face Vahie of Bs. 355 {Rupees Three Hundred
Fifty Five) each at a premium of Re. 33,673.48 each.

Serics E CCPS may of auy fis be, fully of partly converted into equity shares at the sole option and discretion of the CCPS holder, at the rate of 1 (One) fully paid cquity share per | (Onc) Series E CCPS.

Series E CCPS will carry voling rights pari-passu with the equity shares, on au as-if converted basis,

Serics E CCPS shall have a maximum maturity period of 19 (Nincteon) years from the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series E CCPS shall conpulserily and astomatically covert into squity sharcs.

The CCPS sharchalders have right 1o receive dividend prior to equity share holders The Saries E CCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0,0001% per anaus, Tn addition b the sbovs, the helders of sach of the Serics E CCPS arc entitied
Lo sech dividends as distrit to the ether Shareholders of the Compnny, d: ined on a Fully Diluted Basis

In event of liquidation, Each of the holders of the Scrics E CCPS will be ensitled to reeeive {in prefot 10 any equity sharcholder), an amouwnt equal 1o the higher of: (8) o pro tata portion of the proceeds of the Liguidation Event based on
the sharcholding of such halder of Series E CCPS in the Company oa o fully diluted basis; and (b} ane fimes ihe Subseription Price on each Serics E CCPS held by such holder plus any declored but unpaid dividends.




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UT2900DL20 1P TCI25614

Notes to Consalidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al grounis in Re. Millions, nnless stherwise stated)

0.0001% Cumulative C; sory Convertible P Shares - Series El (Face Value- R, 355)
During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company issucd !'ul],y paid up and subseribed 74,641 nos 0.0001%% Cumulative C Isory C ible Prefc Shares (CCPS)- Series EN of Face Value of Rs. 355 (Rupees Three Hundred
Fifty Five) cach at a premium e( R, 33,673.48 cach o the of Pickrr Technokojics Privade Limited in licu of purchase of eir stoke in Picker Technolegics Private Limited The same got convered inta 58,530 cquity

shares of Face value of Rs. 10 each ot a premium of s, 43,384 13 each during the same finascial year,

10001% Cumulbative € y Convertibie Pref Shares - Series E2 (Face Value- Rs, 355)

During the year caded March 31, 2023, the Company issucd fully paid up and subseribed 59,793 was 0.0001% Cumalative Conipulsory C iblo Py Shares (CCPS)- Series E2 of Face Value of Rs. 355 (Rupees Three Hundred
Filty Five) each at a premius nﬁ'u. 43,039.13 pach.

Serics E2 CCPS muay ot pny time be, fully or partly into equity shares at 0 paion aud d tom of the CCPS holder, at the rate of 1 {One) fully paid cquity share per 1 {One) Serics E CCPS,

Series E2 CCPS will carry voting rights pari-passu will the equity sharos, on on 0s-if converied basis,

Series E2 CCPS shall have 2 maximum materity period of 19 (Mineteen) vears fram the date of their issuance, on the expiry of which, the series E2 CCPS shall compulsorily and autematically covert into equity shares,

The CCPS sharchalders have right (o receive dur:dend pricr o equity share liolders The Seriss E2 OCPS bears a cumulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per atsum. o addition to the above, the holders of each of the Series E2 CCPS are
envitied fo such prop dividends a5 distribuled 1o the other b of the Company, determined on a Fully Diluted Bosis.

hwcnl.o!‘lwdanm. Ench of the hobders of the Series E2 CCPS will be entitied (o receive (in p o any equity an amaunt equal to the higher of: (a) a pro rata portion of the proceeds of the Ligeidation Event based
on thio shareliolding of such holder of Serigs E2 CCPS in the Company on a fully diluted basis; and (b) ome limes the Subscription Price on each Series E2 CCPS held by such bolder plas any declored but ynpaid dividends.

Eait Righits tu Dnstraments wntively wml\ i mtuie
Ths Company has entered o 4 with various pri quity investors for purch [ chores As per e terms of SHA, the Company will initiate o qualified mstitutional placement offer (*QIPQ7) on o recopnised stock
exchange,

Afler the cxpiry of 36 months from the Initial Closing Date, il the Majority Invester 51 in their sale discretion, that the Comipany will not be able to safisfy its obligation to consummate the QTPO, the Majority Tnvestor

Sharcholders shall have the right to require the Compary and the Prameters to complete a Liquidation Event,

I the Comparry s anable o, for ary reasan, omple!e 2 QIPO wilksin the agreed period, then the Majority Investor Shiareholders shall have the right to issue o written nesize *Exit Notiee™) 10 the Company and the Fromolers to plwad&: nu
it to the [nvestor Sharcholders who elect to participate in such exit (“Electing Investor Sharclelders”) specifiving that the Company andfor the Pronioters shall provide an exit to such Electing Investor Shareholders i the ways,
by the Majority Investor Shareholders, in llmr sole discretion.

{c) Shaves Issued for issuc under options

Far details of sharcs reserved for issue under the employee stock aption (ESOP) plan of the company, pleast refer note 31,
(1} Details of shares held by promoters

The Company is professionally managed and does not have an identifiable promoter.

{Thix space has beew inicntionally leff Hank)




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: UTZ900DL2I011PTC225614

Notes to C lidated fi ial for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

114i}

11(ii)

Other equity
Particulars

{i) Securities Premium

Asat April 1,2021

Add: Premium on shares issued during the year

Less: Utilization against buyback of shares

Less; Tax paid on buyback of shares

Less: Expenses on buyback of shares

Less: Transaction cost associated with issuance of shares
As at March 31,2022

Add: Premium on shares issued during the year

As at Mareh 31,2023

(ii} Share-based payment reserve

As at April 1,2021

Add: Share based payment expense (Refer note 31)
As at March 31, 2022

Add: Share based payment expense including options granted as part of deal (Refer note 31)

Less: Transfer to General Reserve on ESOPs lapsed during the year
As at March 31,2023

(iii) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
As at April 1, 2021

Add: Translatien reserve created during the year
As at March 31,2022

Add: Translation reserve created during the year
As ot March 31, 2023

(iv) Capital Redemption Reserve

As at April 1,2021

Add: Reserve created on buyback of shares
As at March 31, 2022

Add: Reserve created on buyback of shares
As at March 31,2023

(v) General Reserve

As at April 1, 2021

Add: Transfer on account of ESOPs lapsed during the year
As at March 31, 2022

Add: Transfer on account of ESOPs lapsed during the year
As at March 31,2023

(vi) Retained earnings (i
As at April 1,2021

Add: (Loss)Profit for the year atteibutable lo equity holders of the parent
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

Less: Capital Redemption Reserve created on Buyback of shares

As at March 31,2022

Add: (Loss)}Profit for the year attributable to equity helders of the parent
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year

Less: Acquisition of Non-controlling interest

As at March 31,2023

ling Other Comprehensive Income)

Tatal Other Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
As at April 1, 2021

As ot Marech 31,2022

As at March 31,2023

Noo-Controlling Interest

Particulars

As at April 1,2021
Add: Addition on account of consolidation of subsidiaries durmg the year

Add/{Less): Share in Total Comprehensive income of subsidiaries during the year

As at March 31,2022
Add: Addition on account of consolidation of subsidiaries during the year

Add/(Less): Share in Total Comprehensive income of subsidiaries during the year

Add/(Less): Acquisition of Non-contrelling interest during the year
As at March 31,2023

Amount

1,393.52
14,012.72
(742.69)
(173.02)
(1.20)
(369.79)
14,119.54
6,372.95

20,492.49

1.22
323.80
325.03
881.00

(25.08)

1,180.95

(2.86)
(2.86)
297
0.11

0.22
0.22

0.22

25.08
25.08

=

(488.13)
(627.13)
(2.82)
022
(1,118.30)
(3,113.22)
(76.17)

(962.34)
ssgm.oa;

906.60
13323.61
16,428.81

Amount
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Nates to C n ial for the year ended Mareh 31,2023
(AN amounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

11(iii} Nature and purpose of Reserves

Securities Premium
The amount represents the additional amount shareholders paid for their issued shares that was in excess of the par value of those shares. The same can be utilised for
the items specified under section 52 of Companies Act, 2013,

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has elested to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equily secumties in other comprehensive income. These changes are
accumulated within the Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income within equity. The Group transfers amounts fTom this reserve to retained eamings
when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

Share Based Payment Reserve
The share options-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under Employee stock option plan

Exchange differences on tr @ the i ial of o foreign operation
Exchange differences ansing on translation of the foreign operations are recognised m other comprehensive income as described in accounting policy and
gccumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment 1s disposed-off

Retained Enmings
Retained cammga are I.hc pmftsﬂ{loss) that the Group has camed/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
harehold 2s include (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capital Redemption Reserce

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Capital redemption reserve is created when a Group purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities
premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the
provisions of Section 69 of Companies Act, 2013

General Reserve
The Group sppropriates a portion to general reserves out of the profits voluntanily to mest future contingencies. The said reserve is available for payment of dividend
to the shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

{This space has been ivtentionally left blank)
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Notes to Consolidated i inl for the vear ended March 31, 2023
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12 Financial Liabilities

L2(i}) Borrowings

i As at Asat As at
Tl March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Current
Term Loan
Current maturities of Long-term borrowings - - 63.64
Others
Bank Overdraft (secured) 1,718.08 - -
Oithers 332 -
Total 1,718.08 3.22 63.64

= SIS
Total {(a+b) 1,718.08 322 63.64
Total current 1,718.08 322 63.64
MNotes:
1) Secured loan taken from Innoven Copital India Pvt. Ltd. of Rs. 200 million which is repayable in 22 equated menthly installments, The rate of interest is 14.30% p.a. The
ding seven install quivalent to 63 .64 million had been fully repaid during the vear endad March 31, 2022,
b) The company has ding Bank draft facility of Rs. 1718.08 million (March 31, 2022 - Nil; April [, 2021 - Nil) availed from ICICI Bank and HDFC Bank]for OD-FD

facility with interest rate ranging between 4 50% to 5% and tenure being upto twelve months.

c} At March 31, 2023, the Company had available Rs. 825,12 million (Masch 31, 2022 - Rs. 209,30 million; April 1, 2021 - Rs. 166,90 million) of undrawn committed borrowing
facilitics.

d) Fixed deposits lien of Rs. 2,711.83 million (Mareh 31, 2022 - Rs. 209,30 million; Apnl I, 2021 - Rs. 166.90 millicn) marked for Kotak Mahindra Bank, ICICI Bank, HDFC Bank,
Axis Bank, CITI Bank, Yes Bank and American Express for ODFD and Corporate Credit card respectively.

12(ii) Trade payables

As at Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entesprises (Refer note 28) 122.78 26,04 347
Total owstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,865.61 §77.42 518.99
Total 1,988.39 20344 51246
Trude payables are non-imterest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 days terms.
For explanations on the Group's eredit risk management procasses, refer note 38,
i edul
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Ouwistanding for fellowing periods from transaction date Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years
Tatal outstanding dues of miero enterprises and small 12278 5 5 - 12278
enterprises
Total of:lslandlng dues nfcre.dllms other than micra 166719 346 : . 1,669.65
enterprises and small enterprises
Accrued Expenses 195,56 - - - 195.96
‘Total 1,985.91 .46 = - ]gﬂ&JS
As at March 31, 2022
i Ouistanding for fellowing periods from transaction date
Particuln s e  CE e L Total
AP Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 yenrs Mare than 3 yenrs
Total eplstmdmg dues of micro enterprizes and small 3583 021 i .
enterprises 26.04
Total ofllstandmg dues ufcre_d'llos other than micro Tossss 0.04 _ " 531.59
enterprises and small enterprises
Accrued Expenses 345.83 - - - 345,83
Total 903.21 0,25 - - 90346
Asat April 1, 2021
Phiticatars Outstanding for following periods from b date Total
Less than 1 vear 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
‘Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
5 347 - - - 3.47
eNerprises
Total o,llslandmg dues ofcr:_duon other than micro 356,53 033 . . 356.87
P and small enterprises
Accrued Expenses 162,12 - - 162,12
‘Total 522.13 0.33 - - 52146

There are no disputed dues from micro enterprises and small enterprises and creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises as at March 31, 2023; March 31, 2022 and
April 1,2021.

The above ageing is prepared for Invoices booked on first in first out hasis
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for the year ended March 31, 2023

12(iii) Other Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cast

Current

2) Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers

= Amount payable, collected on behalf of the customers

b} Employee benefit payable

©) Security deposit payable

Total Other Current financial liabilities

13 Provisions

Non-current
Frovision for Gratuity (Refer note 29)

Tetal Non-carrent Provisions
Current

Frowision for Gratuity (Refer note 29)
Provision for compensated absences
Total Current Frovisions

14 Other curvent linbilities

a) Contract linbilities (Refer note 15)
{i) Customers balance in wallet
(1i) Defesred revenue
(1) Advance from customers

b) Statutory dues payable*

) Provision for Income tax demand

Total Other current liabilitles

* Statutory dues mainly includes wax deducted at source, goods and service tax, p

Asat Asat Asat
Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
630.16 164.83 54.03
630.16 164.83 54.03
431,79 217.88 48.20
431,79 217.88 49.20
0,79 079 -
0.7% 0,79 =
1.062,74 383,50 103.23
iz Rt
Asat Asat Asat
Mauch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 AEI'II 01,2021
55.81 707 15,58
55.81 2707 15.58
Ses =
875 537 027
60.22 21.24 8.29
68.97 26.61 8.56
=
As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 .m'il 01,2021
749.83 45226 340.79
9.45 19.74 13.48
38.47 0.10 ¥
797,78 472,10 354.27
93.91 57.57 22.06
95.91 6757 22.06
18.76 051 =
18.76 0.51 L2
912.41 540.18 37633

fund and employee state |

(This space has heen imtentionally left blank)
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15

(2l

(b}

16

Revenue fram Operations

Disaggregated revenue information

Setout below is the disngeresation of the Group's revenue from

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sale of services
R from Merch Luti 10,880.17 6,003.37
Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of traded poods 810 12.13
Tatal revenue from operations 10,888.27 6,105.70
Revenue on the basis of geographical location

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
India 10,884 87 6,103.30
Ouside India 339 240
Total revenue from operations 10,888.26 6,105.70
Timing of vevenue recognition

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Services rendered at a point in time 10,880.17 6,003.57
Goods Transferred at a point in time 810 12.13
Total revenue from operations 10,885.25 6,105, 70
Cauteact balanees
The followsng table provides information about receivables, eontracts assets, and contract labilitiog fram contracts with cugtamars

Particulars i Ay

Murch 31, 2022 April 1,2021
Trade receivables [Refer note 6{i1)] 469,20 14075
Contract assets [Refer note 6(vi})] 38197 208,94
Contract liabilities [Refer note 14] (452.36) (340.79)

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. During the year ended March 31, 2023, Rs. 277,27 millions (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 36.41 millions) was

gnised as p for exp 1 credit losses on trade receivables,

h

for services

The contract assets primarily relate so the Group's rights 1o
rights become unconditional

i but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are ransfarred to the receivables when the

The contract liabilities relates to payments received to be adjusted agamst either provision of service or refundable to custormer an request on fulfilment of defined requirements

Other income

Far the year eaded

Fur the year ended

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022

16.1 Finance Income
[nterest income on:
- Bank deposits at amaortised cost 36241 230.68
- Income tax refund 278 1.05
- Unwinding of discount on securnity deposits paid af amortised cost 3.06 047
Liability Written back -0.00 -
Total Finance Income (A) 368.26 232.20
16.2 Other Income
Profit on disposal of Property, plant and equipment 002 0.00
Rent waiver on lease linbilities (refer note 0) - 130
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (192) 0.42
Prafit on sale of Mutual fund investments 4,86 -
Miscellaneous Income 727 1.02
Total Other Income (B) 10.23 324
Geand Total (A+B) 378.49 235,44
Cost of Merchant Selutions

For the year ended Far the yenr ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cost of Merchant Solutions 8,344.76 4,775.00
8,344.76 4,775.00
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18 Purchase of traded poods

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Traded goods (Packing Material) [Refer note 7] 4158 12.82
41.58 11.52
19 Changes in inventories of traded goods
For the year endad For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
As at the end of the year
Treded goods (Packing Matenal) [Refer note 7] (12.13) (4.34)
As at the beginming of the year
Traded goods (Packing Material) [Refer note 7] 434 222
Increasel{ Decrease} in Inventories of Traded Goods (7.79) (2.12)

20 Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

Far the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2012
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,409.20 B59.71
Contribution to provident and other funds 4591 10.94
Share Based Payment Expense (refer note 31) 655.19 324,89
Gratuity cxpense (refor note 29) nn 870
Staff welfare sxponses 48,73 16.11
3,182.75 I:ﬂﬂ.}‘

21 Depreciation and amortization expense
: For the year ended For the year ended

Bartioilons March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipments (refer note 3) 8524 21.81
Amortisation of Intangible assets (refer note 4) 171.40 1348
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 30) 157.21 30.14
413.85 65.43

21 Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2012
Rent {refer note 30) 12.73 310
Power and Fuel 15.73 172
Rates and Taxes 12.20 5.00
Marketing Expenses 23590 243.98
Insurance 12.74 3.87
Repalr and Maintenanee 3170 16.53
Travelling and Conveyance 3916 6.50
Server and Communication Costs 39170 156.29
Payment Gateway Charges 56,79 4783
Waret Manag P 15090 136.24
Qutsourced Suppon Cost 74,68 G6.61
Telephone and Intemet Charges 24.95 154
Legal and Professional Fees 175.08 7018
Property, Flant and Equipment and Intangibla assets written off 0.21 041
Payment to Auditer 528 3124
Recruitment Charges 21.62 1588
Recoverables written off - 0.55
Bad Debis writien off 362 106
Foreign Exchanpe Fluctuations Loss (Net) 0.31 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts (nst) 2 56.41
Provision for Doubtful Recoverables 120.18 20.29
Facility Expenses 28,98 3.83
Miscellaneous Expenses 5.24 6,52
Total 1,897.03 §93.74
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23 Finance costs

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Mlarch 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Interest at amontised cost
= Term Loan - 305
- Bank Overdraft 4622 -
= Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 30) 4970 903
Bank Charges 236 , 080
95.28 12,88
e
4.1 Exceplional items
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amortisation of Intangible assets [Refer Note 4] (512.98) -
Provision for 1 in value of T in [Refer Note 5] {111,60) -
(631.58) -
242 Comp of Other Compreh Income (OC1)
For the year ended For the year ended
Parfienlas March 31,2023 March 31,2022
() Items that will not be reclassified to profit ar loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement (loss)zam on defined benefit plans 1.46 (2.82)
Gain/(loss) on sale of of equity & preference instruments carried st FVTOCT (19.90) -
Chenges m fair value of equity & preference instruments carried at FVTOCT (54.75) -
(b} Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent perinds:
Exchange differences on translation of forgign operations (297} 186
[76.15) 0.04

15 {LossWEaming per share (EPS)

Basic eamings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year. Diluted eamings per equity share has

been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year,

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

: For the year ended Far the ended

Particulars L) Mareh 31, 2023 Mareh 31,2022
Total (Loss)yProfit attributable to equity holders of the parent R, Millians (3,189.38) (625.95)
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulating Basic EPS Numbers 20,17,866 156,90,855
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS Numbers 20,17,866 16,90,855
Basic EPS [Nominal value Rs. 10 per share (March 31, 2022 - Rs, 10 per shars)] Rs. (1,580.57) (372.56)
Diluted EPS [Nominal value Rs, 10 per share (March 31, 2022 - Rs, 10 per share)] Rs. (1,580.57) (372.56)
Basic EPS for the year 202122 restated for rights issue Re NA (366.28)
Diluted EPS for the year 2021-22 restated for rights issue Rs. NA (366.28)

There are potentinl equity Shares as on March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 in the form of stock options issusd. As these are antidilutive, they are ignored in the calculafion of diluted Joss per share

and accordingly the diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share.
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Significant accounting jud and P
The preparation of the Fu:ancml leqnires to make judg " and ptions that affect the reported ts of revenues, exp asgets and
liabilities, and the panying discl , and the discl of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outeomes that require a material

adjustment to the carrying nmount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods”

Judgements
In the process of applying the ing policies, has made the foll o jud which have the most significant effect on the gnised in the financial
statements;

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group ais lessee
The Group determines the lease term a5 the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is bly certain to be
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is rensonably centain not to be exercised

| i

The Group has several lease contracts that include extenzion and termination options, The Group applies judg in g whether it is cerain whether or not to exercise
fhe opticn to renew or terminate the lease That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an gconomic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the Jease term if lhere is a significant event or change in ¢ircumstances |hal is within its contrel and affects its ability to exercise of not to exercise

the option Lo renew or 1o inate (.., ion of si hold imp or signi ion o the leased asser),
The Group included the renewal period as part of the Feass term for leases of corp offices and housing facilities with shorter non-cancellable period (i.¢., three to five years), The
Group typically exercises ils option to renew for these leases because there will be a significant negative cifect on operations if a repl: asset is not readily available, The renewal

periods for leases with longer nan-cancellable periods (i.e, 10 to 15 years) are not included as part of the lease tarm as these are not reasonably cerain to be exercised. Furthermors, the
periods covered by ination options are included as part of the lease term only when they are reasenably certain not to be exercised

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of cstimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are described below, The Group based its tons and esti on ilable when the financial

were prepared, Existing ci and ptions about future devel b , may change due to market changes or circumstances ansing that are beyond the contral of the
Group, Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they ocour,

Tmpairment of Non-financial assets

Impairment ¢xists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit cxceeds its recoverable amount, which 15 the higher of its fur value less costs of disposal and its value in use,
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, coriducted at arm's length, for similer assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Group is not vet ited to or significant future ¥ that will enh the asset's perfe afl.he CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive 1o the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for purposes. These esti are most relevant to
goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Group,

Share Based Payments

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share based payment :ransamnns whereby emp{uyees render SErvices as d for equity 1 {equity-settled
transactions). In accordance with the Ind AS 102 Share Based Payments, the cost of eq tled is d using the fair value method. The cumulstive expense recognized
for equity-settled transactions ar each reporting date unul the vesting date reflects the ex:ent 1o which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the rlu.mbEl of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit recognized in the statement of profit and loss for a period rep the in lative expense ized 23 at the
beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuati An il valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the d:s(:oum rate, future salary | increases and momllly rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in th ions. All P are i at each reporting date.

The pmamelet ‘most subject to change is the dizcount rate. In determining the appropriate di rate for plans op d, the iders the interest rates of government bonds

in i with the ies of the post-employment benefit oblipation,
The merality rate is based on publicly available mertality table . The mertality table tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 29

Fair value measurement of financial instrumenis
When the fair values of financial assets and financial linbilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is

required in establishing fair values. Jud include iderations of inputs such 2s liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the

reported fair value of financial instruments.

Useful life of Property, plant aud equipment

Property, plant end equipment are stated at cost, less lated depreciation and 1mpai loss, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing pant of the plant and equipment, When

g1gmfmanl parts of plant and equif are required to be replaced at i Is, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major
it is petfi d, its cost is gnised in the carrying amount of the plant and equi a5 a repl if the ion criteria are satisfied All other repair and mnintenance

costs are rocogmsed in profit or loss as incurred. .
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any,

Depreciation on all property plant and equip are provided on a written-d value method based on the estimated useful life of the asset, The management has estimated the useful
lives and residual values of all properly, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives based an 's of their respecti ic usefiul lives, The residual values,
useful fives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equiy are d ar each fi ial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Depreciation on the assets
purchased dunng the year 15 provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase of the assets. An item ol property, plant and equip and any 1 part initially ised is

derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss anising on derecogaition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised

Impairment of goodwill

The Group estimates the value-in-use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on the future cash flows after ing current i ions and trends, d future

results and growth rate and antici d future icand latory conditi The esti i cash flows are developed using internal forecasts, The discount rate vsed for the CGU's
represent the weighted average cost of capital based on the histerical market returns of comparable companies,

Loss allowance on trade receivables

The Group uses a pravision matrix io calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due of various customers that hove similar loss
patterns (i.e, by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of eradit and other forms of credit insurance), The provision matrix is initially based on the
Group's 'mslomal observed defanit rates, The Group will calibrate the matrix te adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information, Fm instance, if Faremst

ditions {i.e, gross d prod are exy d to deteriorate over the nex! year which can lead to an increased number of defavits in the fa g sector, the | I
default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date. the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are anafysed Thc assessment of the
correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in and of

forecast economic conditions, The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future.
The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 180 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial assct to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the i I i full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by
the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. =
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for the year ended March 31, 2023

Details of CSR Expenditure
Particulars

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year
b) Ameunt approved by the Board to be spent during the year

¢) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2023;
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
ii) On purposes other than (i) above

d) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2022:

1) Construction/acquisition of any asset
ii) On purposes other than (i) above

e) Details related to spent / unspent obligations:

1) Contribution to Public Trust
i) Contribution to Charitable Trust
iii) Unspent amount in relation to:
= Ongoing project
- Other than ongoing project

For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
- 1.06
- L.06
In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total
In eash Yet to be paid in cash Total
1.06 - 1.06
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
- 1.06

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act 2006
The Group, has during the year, initiated the process of identification of its suppliets rendering their status under The Micro, 5mall and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amount unpaid &s at the year end along with interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have been provided in the books of
accounts, Based on the information available with the Group there are following principlefinterest amount due w0 micro, simall and medium cuterprises,

Particulars

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act and remaining unpaid as at year end

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and
remaining unpaid as at year end

Principal amounts paid 1w suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to
suppliers regstered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed
day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day
during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under
MSMED Act, for payments already made

Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

As at As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 1, 2021
122.78 26,04 347

{This space has boen tatentionally left blank)
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129 Employee Benefits

A. Defined Contribution Plans
The Group makes contribution towards Provident Fund, Employes State Insurance Scheme and Pension Scheme to the defined contribution plans for eligible

employees.
The Group has charged the following costs in Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-

For the year ended For the year ended
Sl Mmh{*»l,zozs Mnrchy:la, 2022
Emplover's contribution to Provident fund and pension schemeas 3754 10.93
Emplover's contribution to Employzes State Insurance o0l 0.01
Employer's contribution to Employees National Pension System 895 -
Total 46.91 10.94

B. Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity:
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to specific benefit.
The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary
last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months subject to marimum limit of INR 2 million. The same is payable on termination
of service or retirement or death whichever 15 sarlier.
The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected unit credit
method, which recopnises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and each unit sep Iy to build up the final
obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows The discount rate used for determining the present value of the
obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses (net of tax)
are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
The Group has a unfunded defined benefit pratuity plan,

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profits or losses and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for
the respective plans:

{i

Benefit liability

Asat Asat As at
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Present value of obligation at beginning of the year 3244 15.85 9.24
Additions C q to Busi ination of Subsidiary 317 -
Additions Conscquent to consolidation of Subsidiaries 14.05 2.08 -
Interest cost 347 129 .62
Current service cost 19.25 741 6.08
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation
- Economic assumptions (3.49) (1.58) 0.05
- Demographic assumptions (0.15) 16,03 (0.07)
- Experience adjustment 218 (11.65) 0.08
Benefits paid {3.16) (U.20) (0.15)
Present value of abligation at the closing of the year 64,56 32.44 15.85
(i) Gratuity Cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:-
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Current service cost 19.25 7.41
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 347 1.29
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss® 22.72 8.70
i) Gratuity Cost recognised through Other Compreliensive Income:-
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Actuarial (gains) / losses
= change in financial assumptions (3.49) (1.56)
- change in demographic assumptions (0.15) 16.03
- expericnce variance (1.¢. Actual experience vs assumptions) 218 {11.65)
(1.46) 2.32
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{iv) The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Group's defined benefit obligations are set out below:

As at As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021

Discount rate 736%-73%% 7.26% - 7.50% 6.76%

Future salary increase 7% - 10% T% - 10% 6.00%

Average expected future working life (vears) 26,59 -30.49 27.67 -30.04 2836
Withdrawal rate (per annum)

- Up to 30 years 2% - 30% 2% - 30% 3.00%

- From 31 years to 44 years 2% - 28% 2% - 28% 2.00%

= From 44 years to 58 years 2% -25% 2% -25% 1.00%

“Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate represents published mortality table used for mortality assumption.

(v) A quantitative seasitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Impact of the change in discount rate
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50% (2.90) (0.94)
b} Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 324 1.05
Impact of the change in salary increase
&) Impact due to increase of 0.50% 280 0.95
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % {2.55) (0.85)
The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions occwrring at the end of the reporting year. These analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant
and may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changss in assumptions would oceur in isolation of one enother,
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 11 years (March 31, 2022 - 14 years, April 1, 2021 - years).
vi}) The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit obligation in future years:
Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Within the next | 2 months (next annual reporting period) 876 537
Between 2 and 5 years 2552 16.42
Between 5 and 10 years 3028 10.65
Beyond 10 years o -
Total expected payments 64.56 32,44
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30 Leases
Group as n Lessee
The Group has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases’ using the modified retrospective approach from April 1, 2021, On adoption, the Group has recognised 2 right-of-use
asset and corresponding lease liability of Rs. 25.29 million.
The Group has lease contracts for warehouses and office spaces used in its operations. These generally have lease terms between 1 and 10 years.. The Group’s
obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination options and
variable lease payments, which are further discussed below,
The Group also has certain leases contracts for office premises and certain facilities with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office premises and certain
facilities with low value, The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-value asscts’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set owt below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recogmsed and the movements during the vear:

Particulars Total

As at April 1,2021 2529
Additions Consequent to Business combination of Subsidiary 149,43
Aduitions Conseyuent w Consulidation of Subsidiaries -
Additions 208.07
Deletions -
Depreciation expense (30.14)
As at March 31, 2022 352.65
Additions Consequent to Consclidation of Subsidiaries 97.30
Additions 676.82
Deletions "
Depreciation exg . {157.21)
As at March 31,2023 968,56

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Total

As at April 1,2021 24.77
Additions C Juent to Busi combination of Subsidiary 153.74
Additions 206.60
Deletions =
Aceretion of interest 2.02
Payments ! {35.31)
Rent concession* 1.80
As at March 31,2022 360,63
Additions C | to Consolidation of Subsidiaries 97170
Additions 653 82
Deletions -
Accretion of interest 49.70
Payments {167.01)

As at March 31, 2023 994.84

* During the year, the Group has availed rent concessions of Rs. Nil {March 31, 2022 - 1.80 million; April 1, 2021 - Nil) from lessors on account of COVID-19 and
recorded the same as other income in the statement of profit and loss consequent to amendment in Ind AS 116 “Leases™ (Refer note 16.2).

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 As at April 1,2021

Lease Liabilities (Non-current) 814.78 152.05 16.75
Lease Liabilities (Current) 180.06 208.58 802
Total 994,84 360.63 24.77

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 38,
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 9.15%, with maturity between 2023-2032,

The following are the amounts gnised in of profit or loss:

Particulars As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 157.21 30.14
Tnterest expense on lease liabilitics ' 4970 5.03
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 9.31 057
Variable lease payments (included in other expenses) 247.83 11399
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 464,05 153,73

The Group have several lease contracts that include extension and lermination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s busi needs. b 1t exercises significant judgement in determining whether these
extension and termination options are bly certain to be ised (refer note 26).
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Bigloet Retail Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UT2900DLI0TIPTCI25614
Motes to Cansolidated fi inl for the yenr ended March 31,2023

(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless atherwise stated)

32

33

-4

Current Tax and Deferved Tax

Provision fr current tax is not required to be made as the Group has business losses during the year and also has brought forward losses. Since, it is not probable that the Group will gengrate future

axable profits, no deferred tax asset has been recognized on tax losses. .

Commitments and Contingent linbilities

Commitments
Estimated nmount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Nil {March 31, 2022 - Nil, April 1, 2021 - Nil)

. Contingent Linbilities
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts
Period to which the | Forum where the dispute is
Name of the statute Nature of the dues Amount ST A
C issi f Ini
Income Tax Act, 1951 [Refer Footote (i)] Incame Tax 2.50 AY 201819 mﬂgms il

Footote (i) : Order of TDS Officer dated March 30, 2022 ws 201 & 201{1A) was issued having demand of Rs, 2 50 million by INT TAX 1{1}(2) Dethi. The Company has filed an Appeal against this
Demand with CIT(A). The management believes that the Group has good chances of suceass in the above mentioned matter and hence, no provision is considered necessary.

(This space has been imentionally left blank)




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to C lidated fi inl st ts for the year ended March 31,2023
{All amounts in Bs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

34 Related Party Transactions
A. Nume of Related parties and related party relationship
Related Parties under Ind AS 24

Subsidiaries and Associnte

Shiprocket Pre Lid.

Shiprocket DMCC

Shiprocket Arabia for Information Technology

Wigzo Technologies Private Limited

Wigze Technologies Canada Ine

Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

Shiprocket Omuni Private Limited (formerly Arvind Internet Lumited)
Logibricks Technologies Private Limited

Key Management Personnel
Saahil Goel

Gautam Kapoor

Rajan Jitendra Mehra

Pankaj Makkar

Arjun Singh Ravinder Singh Sethi
Vaidhehi Ravindran

Nishant Chandra

Kumar Tanmay

Nidhi Mishra

Deepa Kapoor

B. Details of Transactions and Balances with Related parties:

Whally-owned Subsidiary

Step-down Subsidiary (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Shiprocket Pte Ltd )

Step-down Subsidiary (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Shaprocket DMCC)

Subsidiary Company (w.e.f. December 31, 2021 )

Step-down Subsidiary (Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Wigzo Technologies Private Limited)
Subsidiary Company (w.e.f. June 30, 2022 )

Wholly-owned Subsidiary ( wef October 31, 2022 )

Associate Company

Director and Chief Executive Officer

Director

Nominee Director

Nominee Director

Nominee Director

Nominee Director

Non-Executive Director (w e f September 26, 2022)
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary (resigned w.e.f. June 2, 2023}
Company Secretary (w e f August 28, 2023)

i For the year ended Tor the year ended
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
(1) Investment made during the year

Unquoted shares
Logibricks Technologies Private Limited - 111.60

(i1} Buy back of share eapital including securities premium
Saahul Goel - 18573
Gautam Kapoor - 22289

(11} Isswe of share capital
Saahil Goel - 0.01
Gautam Kapoor - 0.0t

(iv) R ation of key gerial personnel®
Saahil Goel 14.27 10.96
Gautam Kapoor 14.87 11.84
Kumar Tanmay 20.25 945
Nidhi Mishra 0.92 066
*Excludes emplayer's contribution to provident fund and gratutty

. Outstanding Balances:
£ Asat Asal Asat

Exrtiailazy Murch 31, 2023 March 31,2022 April 1,2021

(A) Payable at year end

(i) Other Financial liabilities

Saahil Goel - 1.2t 1.18
Gautam Kapoor 0.61 0.52
Kumar Tanmay - 1.13 -
Nidhi Mishra - 006 0.04

D, Terms and Conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties zre made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions Outstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured end interest free and settlement oceurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or repeived for any related party recervables or payables.

35  Segment Information

The Group is engaged in providing services related to Merchant solutions in a single segment. Based on “Management Approach”, as defined i Ind AS 108 - Operatmg
Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates resources based on the analysis of performance of the Group as a whole. [ts
operations are, therefore, considered to constitute a single segment in the context of Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments.




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614
Notes to Consolidated fi ial for the year ended Mareh 31,2023

(Al amonnts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

36 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying nmounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments, including those with carrying amounts that are reasonable
approximations of fair values:

Financial Instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2023 wereas follows:

Finaucial assets/liabilities at fair value through

Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost Carrying amount
Profit or loss QOther Comprehensive Income
Assets:
Investments (non-current) B(i) - - 45,98 46.98
Other Bnancial Assels (non-curent) 6(v) 543.21 . = 543,21
Irvestments {current) (i) = 20819 - 208.19
Trade recsivables 6(ii} 907.52 - - 907,52
Cash and cash equivalents i) 855,04 - - 855.94
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 6liv) 7915 - - T9.15
Other financial Assets {current) 6{v) 7.373.68 - - 737368
Total 9,759.49 208.19 46.98 10,014.67
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities (non-current) 30 814.78 - - 814.78
Borrowings (current) 12() 1,718.08 - - 1, 718,08
Lease Liabilities (current) 30 18006 - - 150,06
Trade Payables 12010 1,588.39 - - 198839
Other Financial Liebilities 12(ii) 1,062.74 = - 1,062.74
Total 5,764.04 - = 5,764.04
The carrying value and faie value of financial instrumeits by iz a5 of March 31, 2022 were as follows:
Particulars Note No. Amaortised Cost Ernancin) xatetliatiliGes at fuir vale gl Carrying amount
Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income
Assets:
Investments (non-current) 6{i) 3920 3920
Orher financial Assats (non-cerrent) &(v) 9,393.88 - - 989388
Investments (current) B{i) - 35.04 - 55.04
Trade receivables 6(ii) 469.20 - - 469.20
Cash and cash equivalents G(1if) 343.12 - - 343,12
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 6(iv) 63,46 - - 6346
Other financial Assets (current} a(v) 3,187.29 - - 3,187.29
Total 13,956.95 55.04 39.20 14,051,19
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities {non-current) 30 152.05 - E 152.05
Borrawings (current) 123} 322 = - iz
Lease Ligbilities {current) 30 208.58 - - 208,58
Trade Payables 12¢i) 903,46 . - 903,46
Ohher Financial Liabilities 12(i1) 383.50 - - 383,50
Total 1.6_59.80 - - 1,650.80
The carrving value and fair value of financial instruments by categories a5 of April 1, 2021 were as follows:
Particalars Note No. Amortised Cost EitampIAL nss s il itizs at falr vabis firosh Carrying amount
Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income
Assets:
Other financial Assets (non-current) §(v) 1,074.04 . . 1,074.04
Investments (current) B{i) - - - -
Trade raceivables 6(it) 14075 . - 140,75
Cash and cash equivalents Gliit) (6.43 - - G6.43
Bank balances otier than Cash and cash equivalents B{iv) 739.77 . - 73977
Orher Anancial Assets (current) 6(v) 296.34 - - 296.34
Total 231733 - - 2,317.33
Linbilities:
Borrawings (non-current) 12(i) - - - -
Lease Liabilities {non-current) 30 16.75 - - 16,75
Borrowings (current) 12(i 63.64 - - 63.64
Lease Liabilities {current) 30 502 - - 8.02
Trade Payables 12(3i) 52246 5 - 52246
Other Financial Liabilities F2{1ii) 103.23 - - 103.23

Total 714,10 - - 71410
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The following methods/assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The management assessed that cash and cash equival rade ivables, trade payables, bank i and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts

fargely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities as well as other non-current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash
flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities, In addition to being sensitive to a reasonably possible change in the forecast
cash flows or the discount rate, the fair value of the equity instruments is also itive toa bl ible change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management to
use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the signiftcant unobservable inputs are disclosed In |.hc tables below. Manngement regularly assesses a range of reasonably
possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the total fair value.

The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using 2 DCF modzl. The valuation requires to mak riain ptions about the madel inputs,

including forecast cash flows, discount rate, eredit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in
management’s estimate of fair value for these unguoted equity investments.

37 Fairvalue hiernrchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value higrarchy, described as follows, besed on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 1: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are G by 1o quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or habilities.

Level 2: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices ineluded within level 1, that are observable for such items,
directly or indirectly.

Level J: This level of hierarchy includes items measured using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market
in the same i nor based on available market data.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments is discounted cash flow analysis.
The follewing table provides the fair value messurement hierarchy of the Group's nssets and liabilities:
Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities ns at March 31, 2023;

Financial assets/Tiabilities at faiv value through

Particulars Note No. Amortised Cost Siofifar loss Qiifier CompincbéinsivaTacomia Carrying amount
Quoted prices in Significant unobservable
active markets inputs
{Level 1) (Level 3)
Assets:
Investments (non-current) 6{i) - - 46.98 46.98
Other financial Assets {non-current) 6(v) 54321 - - 543.21
Investments (current) 6{i) - 20819 - 208.19
Trade receivables 6(ii) 907.52 - - 907,52
Cash and cash equivalents &) 85594 - - 855,94
Bank balances other than Cash and cash eguivalents 6(iv) T79.15 - - 79.15
Other financial Assets (current) 6(v) 7.373.68 - - 7,371.68
Total 9,759.49 208,19 45.98 10,014.67
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilittes (non-current) an 81478 & - #14,78
Borrowings (current) 1263) 1,718.08 - - 1,718.08
Lease Liabilities (current} an 15006 - - 180,06
Trade Payables 12{ii) 1,988.39 - - 1,968,539
Other Financial Liabilities 12(jii) 1,062.74 . - 1,062.74
Total 5,764.04 - - 5,764.04
Fair value hi hy for fi ial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022:
. - o Financial assets/linbilities at fair value through
BBl SS A=A, Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income L
Quoted prices in Significant unobservable
active markets inputs
(Level 1) {Level 3}
Assets:
Other financial Assets {non-current) G(v) 9,803 88 - - 9,893 88
Investments {current) ai) . - - -
T'rade recervables &{n) 46420 - - 4459.20
Cash and cash equivalents efiii} 34312 55.04 3220 437.36
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents a{iv) 63,46 - - 63 46
Other financial Assets (cumrent) Gv) 318728 - - 3,187.29
Tatal 13.956.95 55.04 3020 14,051.19
Liabilities:
Lease Liabilities (noa-current) 3o 152,05 - - 152.05
Borrewings (current) 12{1) 322 - - 3.22
Lease Liabilities (current) a0 208,58 - - 208.58
Trade Payables 12{i1) 003,46 - - 903,46
Onher Finaneial Lizbilities 12y 383.50 - - B350

Total 1,650.80 - = 1,650.80
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Fair valoe measurement hiernrchy for fi inl nssets and liabilities as at April 1, 2021:
Particubirs Note Na. Ariaitiead Cast Financial assets/Tinbilities at fir value through Gt i
Profit or loss Other Comprehensive Income
Quoted prices in Significant unobservable
active markets inputs
(Level 1) (Level 31
Assets:
Other financial Assets (non-current) 6(v) 1,074.04 - - 1,074.04
Investments (current) 6(i) i % ) ;
Trade receivables a(ii) 140.75 - - 140,75
Cash and cash equivalents 6(iii) 66,43 - - 66,43
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalents &{iv) 73977 - - 739,77
(thar financial Assatz (cnrrent) Alv) 20634 - - 206 34
Total 2,317.33 - - 2,317.33
Linbilities:
Lease Lizbilities (non-current) 30 16.75 - - 16,75
Borrowings {current) 12(i) 63,64 - E: 63,64
Lease Lizbilities {current) 30 ; 8.02 - = a.02
Trade Payables 126i) 522,46 5 = 52246
Other Financial Liabilities 12y 103.23 - = 103.23
Total 714.10 - = 714,10
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement iz as follows:

* Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 3920 -
Addition during the year 62.54 3520
Fair value (loss)gain on financial instruments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income -54.75 =
Balance at the end of the year 46.98 39.20
As of March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021, the fair value of cash and bank bal trade ivables, other i ial assets and liabilities, borrowings, lease

liabilities, trade payables approximate their carrying amount largely due to the nature of these instruments.

(This space has been intentionally lefi biank)
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33 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Group's activities are exposed to vaniety of financial nsk, erediz risk, lquidity risk and Foreign currency. risk. The Group’s senior the af
these risks. The Group’s senior m:mgemenl ensures that the Group’s financial nsk activities are g i by approprinte policies and procedures and that financial risks are
identified, and d in accord: with tha Group's policies and risk objectives. Ths Group mms and nprees on mlluas for managing each of ihese risks
which are summerized below:

{a) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash Mlows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
nisk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodily risk, Financial instruments affected by market risk include lonns and
borrowings, deposis, debt and equity mvestmenis and derivative financial instrements,

“The sensitivity analyses m the following sections relate 1o the position &s al March 31, 2023; March 31, 2022 and Apil 1, 2021,
The anulyses exclude the impact of mavements m market variables on the carrying valwes of gratuity and other post
assets and liabilities of foreign operations

and the non-financial

The following assumplicns have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
- The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the offect of the nssumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assels and financia! liabilities
held at March 31, 2023; March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021.

(i) Interest Raie Risk
Interest e risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of o financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markel interest rales. As majority of the financial
assets and labilities of The Group are either non-interest bearing or fxed interest bearing instruments, The Group's net exposure 1o interest risk is negligible.

{ii) Foreign Currency Risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profil or loss, where any Lrnnsn:lton references more than one curfency o
where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the company. The Group undertak d inated in foreign

and thus it is exposed to exchange rate Nuctuations. The Group has a treasury team which evaluates the impact of loreign cale: 11 ions by ing its exp to
exchange rate risks and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Group. The Group's nel exposure 1o foreign currency risk is negligible,

(iii) Equity Risk

The Group's listed and listed equity ities are plible te market price risk arising from uncerntaimies about Tuture values of the invesiment securities. The Group
maneges the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity i ments Reparts on the equity porifolin are suhmittad 1o The
Group's senior management on a regular basis, The Group's Board of Direclors reviews and app all equity i decish

(b} Credit visk
Credit nsk 15 the risk that - counter party will net meet its obl:wms umier 4 financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to
eredit risk from ils op o activities (primarily trade i 1 1 depesits with banks and financial instituti foreign exch ions and other lnancial
insiruments.

(i) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically wnsecured, Credit risk is managed by The Group throush credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Group grants eredit teems in the normal course of business.

The ageing analysis of rade receivables as of the reporting date 15 as follows:

Lass than 6 6 months - 1

Particulars pi Jilr 1-2 yenrs 2-3 years Muore than 3 years Total
As at March 31, 2023 1,006.42 3277 134.57 e - 1,458,958
As at March 31, 2022 46905 5672 86,99 .64 - 613.3%
As at April 1, 2021 14451 4072 43.04 - - 218,53
* The tgeing of trade receivables does not include expected credit loss.

(i) Expeeted credit loss for trade reccivables using simplified approach Asat As at Asat

March 31, 2023 Mprch 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

Cross carrying amount 144,18 £7.78 3793
Expected credit losses (Loss allowanee pravision) 407.28 5640 49.85
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of impairment) £51.46 144.18 31‘.78=

(1) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceplable losses. The Group's
objective is (o, at all times maintain oplnmun levels of liquidity to meet ils cash :md collateral requirements. The Group closely monitors its lguidity position and deploys &
robust cash system. It mai ! sources of loans from banks at an optimised cost

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group's linancial liabilities based on contractual payments:

As at March 31, 2023 Carrying amount Oa Demand Upto 1 Year More than 1 year Total

Bomewings 1,715.08 I,718.08 - B 1,718.08
Lease Linbilities 994,84 18006 B14.78 Y B4
Trade payables ' L9883% Z181.89 246 2,184.35
Other financial Liabilities 1,062.74 - 1,062,74 - 1,062.74
Total 5,764.04 1,7T18,08 342465 817.24 5,960.00
As at March 31, 2022 Carrylng amount  On Demand Upto I Year More than 1 year Total

Borrowings 322 322 = i
Lease Laabilities 360.63 208,54 152.05 360,63
Trade payables WA AL 1,249.04 025 1,249.29
Other financial liabilit: 38350 - 38350 - 383.50
Total 1,650.80 3 1,841.12 152.30 1,996.63
As at April 01,2021 Carrying smount On Demand Upto 1 Year More (han | year Total

Borrowings G364 63.64 - - 63.64
Lease Liahilities 2477 8.02 16.75 24.77
Trade payables 53246 6iE4.25 033 684,58
Oiher financial liabilities 103.23 ot 103.23 * 103.23

Total Ti4.10 63.64 795.50 17.08 876,22




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited

CIN: U72900DL2011PTC225614

Notes to Conselidated fi ial stat ts for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

39 Capital Management
For the purpose of the group’s capital 1l capital includes issued equity capital, instruments entirely equity in nature, securities premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the group. The primary objective of the group's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.
The group’s objectives when managing capital are to:
* Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders: and
* Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
The group monitors capital by regularly reviewing the capital structure, As a part of this review, The group monitors capital using & gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by
total capital plus net debt, The company mcludes within net debt, interest bearing loans, lease liabilities and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents and liquid investments.

As at Asat Asat
Particul
AT e March31,2023  Mareh 31,2022 April 01,2021
Borrowings 12(i) 1,718.08 32 63.64
Lease Liabilities 30 994,84 360.63 24.97
Less; Cashoand cush eguivalens B(iii) (Ba5.44) {343.12) (66.43)
Less: Investment in mutual funds 6(1) (208,19) {55.04) -
Less: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents &(iv) (79.15) (63.46) (739.77)
Net Debt (A) 1,569.64 (97.78) (717.79)
Equity Sharc Capital 1o 589.96 567.78 384.66
Share Consideration pursuant to Merger 40 0.12 012 -
Other equity 11(i) 16,428 81 13,323.61 906.60
Total Equity attributable to the equityholders of the group (B) 17,018.89 13,891.51 1,291.26
Capital and net debt ( C) 18,588.53 13,793.73 573.47
Capital Gearing Ratio (%) (C/A) 8.44% Not Applicable since company does not have
Net Debt as at year end

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, palicies or processes for managing capital during the March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and April 1, 2021,

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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40 Business Combination

Thie Board of Di of the Holding Company of the group, in its meeting held on March 13, 2022 has approved a Sct of Arrang; tin the nature of merger under section 230 to
240 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 | the Holding Comp (“Transfe Company™) and Glaucus Supply Chain Solutions Private Limited
(T C "), a subsidiary of the Company and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme™). On May 30, 2022 the Holding Company filed the scheme with

Hon’ble Delhi bench of National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT"). The Appointed Date for the Scheme is April 1, 2022

The NCLT approved the Scheme via an order dated April 28, 2023. In accordance with the Scheme, Glaueus Supply Chain Salutions Private Limited ("Transferor Company") has been
merged with Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited, the Holding Company, effective from Apnl 1, 2022,

These transactions have been treated as business combination and the Group has applied pooling of interest method to account for such Business Combination. Based on the requirements
of Appendix C to Ind AS - 103, the Group has d fi 1al inf tion appearing in these financial statements in respect of previous period as if the business combination had
occumed from the actual date of the combination in Transferor company i.e February 10, 2022,

The details of Fair Value of assets and liabilitles acquired as on February 10, 2022 has been provided below:

Particulars Amount
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3228
Other Intangible assets 121,49
Right-of-use assets 149.43
Financial assets
(i} Other financial assets 14.45
Non-gurrent Tax Assets (net) 16,92
‘Total non-current nssets 334.57
Current assets
Inventories 587
Financial assets
(1} Investments 34,63
(11) Trade receivables 84,44
(iit} Cash and cash equivalents 5878
{iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 0,14
{v) Other financial Assets 2824
Other current assets 576
Total current assets 2137.84
Total assets (A) 572,41
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 110.54
Deferred tax liability 0.80
Provisions 263
Total non-current liabilities . 113.97
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 43.20
(ii} Trade payables 88.15
(iti} Other Financial Liabilities 151.82
Provisions 0.54
Other current liabiliti 10.49
Total current liabilities 294.20
Total linbilities (B) 408,17
Net Assets taken over C=(A-B) | 164.24
Purchase Consideration paid
-Paid to Exit Stakeholders 690.21
- Additional Capital Infusion 51.68
Sharc Consideration pursuant to merger (Paid to Sharcholders in accordance|
with share exchange ratio as per scheme approved with NCLT) 012
Total Consideration (D) 742.01
Goodwill Recognised (D-C) a7
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40A Business Aequisitions
{I) Acquisition of Pickrr Technologies Private Limited

In the month of June 2022, Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited (“Shiprocket") entered into Share Purchase Apreement (SPA) and other transaction documents with Pickm
Technologies Private Limited {"Picker") and acquired 80.78% of the issued sharc capital of Pickrr for a consideration of Rs, 9,091.36 millions. Subsequently, Shiprocket acquired
9.37% of the issued share capital of Picker for a consideration of Rs. 981.78 millions during the same financial year through acquisition of Non-controlling interests and same has
been sccounted for in aceordance with Ind AS 103 - 'Business Combinations’,

The group concluded Purchase Price Allocation {“PPA™) of the purchase consideration paid to the sharcholders of Pickm and recognised intangible asscts of Rs. 1,335.46 millions
and balance as goodwill of Rs. 8,053 80 millions in accordance with Ind AS 103 - *Business Combinations”,

The assets and Habilities recopnised as on June 30, 2022 as a result of the acquisition are as foll

Particulars Amount
Property, plant and equipment 2421
Right-of-use assets 29.84
Other non-current financial assets 6.07
Current Investments 155.11
Trade receivables 234,69
Cash and cash equivalents 97,77
Other bank balances 5481
Other current financial assets 34342
Other current assets 67.94
Current tax assels {net) 2870
Mon-current Lease Liabilities (12.09)
Mon-current provisions (12.84)
Current Lease Liabilities (18.01)
Trade payables (609.29)
Other Current Financial Liabilities (320.01)
Other current liabilities (111.22)
Current Provisions (10.17)
Net identifiable assets acquired (A) . (51.09)
Intangbile assets recognised pursuant to PPA

Customer relationships 84523
Technology platforms 39998
Non-Compete fees 90.25
Total Intangible assets recognised (B) 1,335.46
Total Net Identifiable Assets acquired (C=A+B) l,ZEoiiI
Calculation of Goodwill

Stake nequired in Pickrr as on date of acqusition 80.78%
Purchase consideration as per SPA (D) 9,001.36
Non-controlling interest as at date of acquisition (E) 246.81
Less: Total Met [dentifiable Assets acquired (F) 1,284.37
Goodwill to be recognised (G=D+E-F) 8,053.80
Calculation of Acquisition of Non-controlling Interest subsequent to the initial acquisition during the financial year ended March 31, 2023:

Stake acquired in Pickrr subscquent to the date of acqusition till March 31, 2023 9.37%
Purchase consideration as per SPA (H) 981,78
Less: Value of Non-controlling interest acquired (1) 36,54
Loss on Acquisition of Non-controlling Interest (J=H-I) 925.24

(ii) Acquisition of Shipracket Omuni Private Limited (formerly Arvind Internet Limited)

In the month of October 2022, Bipfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited ("Shiprocket") entered into Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) and other transaction documents with
Shiprocket Omuni Private Limited (formerly Arvind Internet Limited){"Omuni”) and acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Omuni for a consideration of Rs, 190.60 millions,
The group concluded Purchase Price Allocation (“*PPA™) of the purchase consideration paid to the shareholders of Omuni and recognised goodwill of Rs. 324.90 millions in
accordance with Ind AS 103 - *Business Combinations’,
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The assets and liabilities r d as on October 31, 2022 as a result of the acquisition are as follows:

B

Particulars Amount
Property, plant and equipment 12.56
Right-of-use assets 67.46
Goodwill 1,443.09
Other Intangible assets 99.88
Other non-current financial assets 6.71
Trade receivables " 64,87
Cash and cash equivalents 9347
Other current financial assets 1.62
Other current assets 7.85
Current tax assets (net) 1.48
Non-current Lease Liabilities (56.34)
Non-current provisions (5.99)
Current Lease Liabilities (11.26)
Trade payables {66.42)
Other Current Financial Liabilities (79.43)
Cither current liabilities (5400
Current Provisions -
Net identifiable asseis acquired (A) 1,581.14

Calculation of Goodwill

Stake acquired as on date of acqusition 100.00%
Purchase consideration as per SPA (B) 1,906.04
Less: Total Net [dentifiable Assets acquired (C) 1,581.14
Goodwill to be recognised (D=B-C) 324.90

(iii) Acquisition of Wigzo Technologies Private Limited

In the month of December 2021, Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited ("Shiprocket®) entered into Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) and other transaction documents with Wigzo
Technologies Private Limited ("Wigzo") and acquired 76.65% of the issued share capital of Wigzo for a consideration of Rs. 689.98 millions. Sul quently, Shiprocket acquired
2.61% of the issued share capital of Wigzo for a consideration of Rs. 160.02 millions during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 through infusion of share capital in Wigzo
which resulted in dilution of Non-controlling interests and same has beer accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 103 - 'Business Combinations’.

The group concluded Purchase Price Allocation (“PPA™) of the purct ideration paid to the shareholders of Wigzo and recognised intangible assets of Rs. 68.38 millions and
balance as goodwill of Rs. 521.01 millions in accordance with Ind AS 103 - *Business Combinations’,

The assets and liabilities recognised as on Dy ber 31, 2021 a5 o result of the acquisition are as fallows:

Particulars Amount
Property, plant and equipment 0.58
Trade receivables 13.02
Cash and cash equivalenis 146.43
Otther current financial assets 1.08
Other current assets 23,54
Current tax assets (net) 1.80
Non-current provisions (2.08)
Short Term Borrowings (0.02)
Trade payables (25.52)
Other Current Financial Liabilities (4.06)
Other current lisbilities (2.69)
Current Provisions (0.03)
Net identifiable assets acquired (4) 152,05
Intangbile assets recognised p to PPA

Customer relationships 2117
Technology platforms 31,38
Non-Compete fees 15.83
Total Intangible assets recognised (B) 68.38
Total Net Identifiable Assets acquired (C=A+B) 220.43
Calculation of Goodwill

Stake acquired as on date of acqusition 75.66%
Purchase consideration as per SPA (D) 689,97
Non-controlling interest as at date of scquisition (E) 51.47
Less: Total Net Identifiable Assets acquired (F) 220.43
Goodwill to be recognised (G=D+E-F) 521.01
Calculation of Acquisition of Non-controlling Interest subsequent to the initial acquisition during the fi ial year ended March 31, 2023:

Stake acquired in Wigzo subsequent to the date of acqusition during the year ended March 31, 2023 2.61%
Amount of share capital infused in Wigzo (H) 160.02
Value of Non-controlling interest diluted (1) 37.11

Loss on Acquisition of Non-controlling Interest (J=I) 37.11
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Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UT2900DL2011PTC225614
Notes to Consolidated financial stalements for the year endeid March 31, 2023

(ANl amounts in Rs, Millions, unless otherwise stated)

41 First thme adopfion of Ind AS

These fnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are the Group's first francial prepared in with fnd AS idering the date of transition ns st Apsil 1, 2021, Fer periods up
i and including the year ended 31st Marel, 2022, the Groop prepored its financial m it with ing stadards potificd wnder section 133 of the Contpanies Act, 2003, read togedher with
Fule 3 of the Ce s (Indiag i Rules. 2008 (a5 amended from fime 1o twe) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 11 1o the Conpanies Act, 2013, (Non-lnd AS

comphian Schedule 1) [Indian GAAP),

Accordingly, the Group has prepared these fuancial statemenis whish comply with Ind AS spphicable for periads ending on March 31, 2023, wogether with the comparative period data as a1 and for the year
cided March 31, 2022, as described in the summary of significant accounting policics. [n preparing these financial slatzments, the Group's opening balance sheet was prepared 2z at April 1, 2021, the Group's
date of transition 1o Ind AS. This note explaing the principn) adjustineats made by the Groug in restating ifs Indian GAAP financial statewenms, including the balanse sheet as at April 1, 2021 and the fisscial
stotemvent as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

Exemptions and exceptions availed
Ind AS 101, First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards allows first tine adopiers of Ind AS eerlain optipast piciss and d igns from th pective application ef cerain Ind AS.
The Group has applicd the following: ions and P i Ove wansition from previous GAAP to Ted AS.

A) Ind AS mandsiory exempions

Al Estimates
An emity's estimaies in accordance willi Ind AS at the dse of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the =sne date in acesrdance with previows GAAFP (afier adjusiments (o
reflect any differance in accounting palicies), unless there is objective cvidoee Uit those estinmates were in crmor.
Tnd AS estimates a5 ar April 1, 2021 are consisicnt with the estiniates os of the seme dote made in conformity with previous GAAF, The Group made estimates for following iems in sccordanee with Ind
AS at e date of ransition as these were not required under previous GAAP;
On asseszneent of estinmies made under the Previous GAAP Muancial statements, the Group has concluded that there is no necessity to rovise such cstimates usdor Tnd A8, as there is o abjective
evidence of an crror in those estimates, The estimates of April 1, 2021 and March 31, 2022 are consisient with these made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP apart from the following
item where application of Indian GAAF did not require estimation:
- Impairment of trads receivables based on expested credit loss maodel
The estimstes wied by the Group to present amount of trade receivables i d ith Ind AS raflect ¢ondilions ot Apeil 1, 2021, the date of transition to Ind AS ond s of March 31, 2022,

A2 Derecognition of financial assets and Habilities
Il AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, requires a first-time ndopler 10 apply the de-rezogaition provisions of Ted AS 109, financial i prospectively far i
occuring on or afler the date of travsition w Ind AS, However, lad AS 01, First-time Adoption of India Accounting Standards, aliows a first- time adopter 10 apply the de-recogaitian requirements in
Trd A5 109, financial instruments, retrospectively from a date of the entity's choosing, provided that the infarmation needed 1o npply Ind AS 109, Tinancial instrunents, to financial assets snd finanzial
Irubifitics desezognised ag & result of past transaclions was obtained a1 the time of inflially accouding for those transactions. The Group hes elected 1o apply the de-recagnition provisions of Tnd AS 107,
financial instruments, prospectively from the date of transition Lo Ind AS.

A3 Classifieation and measarement of finsoncial assets and labilitics
The classification and measurement of financial assets will be mad idering whether thy ditions as per Ind AS 109, financiol instroments are nict based on facts and circumstances existing at the
date of transition,

Finnacial assets can be nicasured wsing effective intercst method by asscssing its cash Mow ¢l istics only on the basis of focts and circumstances cxisting at the date of transition and il it
s impracticable to assess elements of madified time valne of money i.e. the use of effectiva intrest method, Fair value of Anancial asset ot the date of transition shall be the new camying amount of that
asset, The measurenent exemplion applics for fimancial lisbilivies as well,

Applying a requirement is impracticable whien the eatity cannot apply it afler making every reasonabile effort to do so. It is impracticable to apply the changes retraspectively it

) The effeets of the pesti or p are ot or

b) The i fication or requires prtions about what s intent would have been m that period; o

<) The pective application or pecti requires signil catinates of amounts and it is § i istinguish objectively i abeoul those estinstes that exisied al that
time.

B)  Ind AS optional exemnptions

B Deemed cost
Ind AS 101 First time sdoption of Indian Accounting Standards permits a first-fime adopter to elect to continue with the carrving valus for all of its property, plant and cquipment as resagnised in the
Anancial siatements as at (he date of transition to Ind AS, measured os per the provious GAAF and use that as its desmed cost as at the date of traastion. This cxemption can alsa be used for istsngible
assets covered by Ind AS-3E [ntanpible Assels.
For ali classes of property, plant and equipment and intangibles assel existing as an April 1, 2021, ie, date of transition 1o Tnd AS, the Group has used Indian GAAP carying value as deemed cost as
pennitied by led-AS 11, Accordingly. the net written down value (WDV) as per Indian GAAP as on April 1, 2021 lins been considered as iross block uider Ind AS for other clusses of progerty, plam
i cqaipment.

B2 Iwvestments in subsidiaries, joint ventures snd associates
As per Ind AS 27, the Groap has an option to value itz in idiaries and iales either at Previous GAAP Value or Fair value as deemed cost. The Group has ogted for Previous GAAR
valugs for all the subsidiarics and associnte as per exemptions available on fransition,

B3 Business Combinations
“The Growp bas availed the option 1o not apply Ind AS 103,

poctively to basiness combinations that occurred prior to the tmnsiion date,

B4 Fairvalue measurement of finaneinl assets or liabilitics at mifial recopnition
Ind AS 10% requires 1o initially recognize financial assots and liabilities at fair value aad if the foir value differs fram transaction price, the difference is recognized o5 gain or less. The Groop has elected
to apply these requi of itial recognition prospestively to ions entered on er afler the date of transition.




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited
CIN: UT2O00DL2011PTC21S614
Notes o Consolidated financial statements for the year emies) March 31, 2023

(ANl amounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stated)

<) bietween p reporied Indinn GAAP (IGAAF) aml Ind AS
Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indion Accounting Sta
the reconciliations from erstwhile Indion GAAP to Iixd AS as at the periods specified belov.

Reeonciliation of equity between Indian GAAP and Ind AS:

ndards, requires an entity to reconeile equity, Balance Sheet and Statement of profit and loss for prier periods. The following tables represant

Farticulars Notes As at 31 March 2022 Asat 1 April 2021
Total equity (sharcholder’s fands) as per Previous GAAP 1338531 06,60
Add [ {Less): Adjustments on sceotnt of transition to Ind AS:
{2) lmpacs of crention of ROU asset and Lease labiliy as per Ind AS 116 (13.15) -
(b} Provision for Credit note en expested eredit loss modcl as per Ind AS 109 (48.97) -
(c) Fair value af Mutual funds as per FVTPL model as per Ind AS 109 042 3
Mt {61,701 -
Toial equity {sh *s funds) as per Ind AS 13,323.61 F06.60
m Recondiliation of Balpnce Shees 25 at April 1, 2021 between Indian GAAP and Ind AS:
Farticulars Notes :cﬂol:'ge:xn TG :I::Ir:;mm i Amaount as per Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-purrent assels
Property, plant and equipment 3 16,77 1677
Other ntangible assets 4 022 022
Right-of-use aasets 4n - 319 2529
Financial assets o
(i} Investments Ggly -
(if) Qther financiol nssets vy 1.074.55 .52 1,074.04
Tutal non-current assets 1,091 84 24.77 111632
Current assets
Toventorics 3 222 an
Finuneial asscts
(1) lnvestments ] - -
{ii) Trade reccivables @iy 140,75 140075
{iii) Cash nnd cash equivalents G 6,43 66,43
{ivy Bank bakances other than (jii) above Glivy 7INTT 73977
{v) Loans vy - -
(i) Other financial Assets 6v) 29634 29634
Current Tax Assets (net) B 442 2447
Other curent assels 9 19.59 19.59
Todal current assets 1,289.82 1,280.52
Total assels 2,381,085 2477 240553 |
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capitol i 384,66 JR4AE
Other equity LIy B0G.60 S06.60
Equity attributable to equity hokders of the parent 1,291.26 - 1,290.26
Nan-contralling mnterests LigR) -
Total cquity 1,201.26 120126
LIABILITES
Non-current linbilitics
Financial liabilitics
() Berrowings 141 - -
(i) Lease Linbilities k] - 1675 16.75
Provisions 13 15.58 15.58
Total noa-current liabilities 1558 16.75 32.33
Current liabilities
Financial Rabilitics
(i} Barrowings 120y 63,64 63,64
(i) Lease Liabilities 0 802 8.02
(iif} Trade payabics i)
() Total dues of micro and small 347 347
() Total outstanding des of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 51859 51800
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 120 103.23 103.23
Provisions 13 B3 B.36.
Cither curreat liabilivies 14 376.33 376,33
Tedal current linbilities 1,074.22 802 1,062.24
Total equity and labilities s 277 __ 240584




Bigfoot Retail Solutions Private Limited
CIN: U72900DLI0FIPTC225614
Notes to Consolitlated financial statements for the year eaded March 31, 2023

LA nmounts in Rs. Millions, unless otherwise stted)

E} Reconcilintien of Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 between Tndian GAAP and Tnd AS:

Particulars Nates ’ Gm?llt:-ﬁf;d) Effects g;':’;’""“" 10| Amount as perTnil AS
ASSETS
Naon-current assels
Property, plast and equipment 3 8234 234
Goodwill 4 1,098.77 109877
Other Intangible assets 4 23254 23254
Right-ofusc a3s2ls 4 - 35265 35268
Investinens in associates ] (SRR 111.60
Financial assets
(1) Investmenls i) 39.20 3920
(i) Other financial assets ¥} 9.899.05 517 @393 88
Men-current Tax Asscls (neth 8 19.47 1947
Oiher non-current asscls 9 1199 11.99
Total nof-current a5sets 1149494 34748 11.542.44
Current assets
Tnveatorics 7 573 ET3
Financinl asscts
(i) Ivesimenis 34,63 042 3504
{i1) Trade reccivables 51817 {4897 469.20
(i} Cash and cash equivalens 34312 34312
{iv) Bank balances other than (iil) above 6345 63,46
(¥) Loans v - -
(vi) Other financinl Asscis 6(v) 3,187.29 3,187.29
Current Tax Assets (not) 3 H6.80 B6.80
Oither ourren assets & 12539 12539
Totnl currert assels 4 IH7.59 (4856]! 4,339.03
Total assets !;ﬂﬂ 208,92 16,151.47
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 10 36778 56778
Sheare Consideration pursuant 1o Merger 40 0,12 0.12
Ohther equity 1m 1338531 (6L.70] 13.323.61
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 13,953.21 (61,70} 13,891.51
Man-controllmg intesests 114y 45.20 4529
Total equity 1 13.998.50 {61.70) 13,936 80
LIABILITES
Non-current labilitics
Financial Rabilities
(i} Borrowings 120 = 4
(it} Lease Liabilities an - 13205 152,05
Provisions (k] 27.07 27.07
Total non-carrent liabilities 27.07 152,05 179,12
Cureent labilities
Financial liabilitics
(1) Borrowings 12qn m an
(1) Lense Liabilities o - 20858 208.58
(iii) Trade pavables 12030y - -
i) Total ding dues of o poises and small P 2604 26.04
{b] Total eulstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 87741 87742
(iv) Cilier Financiel Linbilitics 12010 38350 383.50
Provisions 13 2661 26.61
Other cusent liabilities 14 54018 540.18
“Total current liabilitics 1.856.97 208.5% 2,065.55
“Total equity and abilitics 15.882.54 238,92 16.161,47
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

AAlL amounts in Rs. Millions, unbess otherwise stated)

¥ Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 hetween Inding GAAP and Tnd AS:

; Amount s per Effects of traasition to
Particulurs Nees GAAP (Restatedl I AS Amuoant as per [nd AS
Tncome
Revenoe fom Cperations (53 6,154.67 {4897 6, 105.70
Other incame té 23275 .69 23544
Total income (1) 638742 (46.28)| 6,341.14
Expenses
Cost of Merchant Soluticas 17 4,775.00 - 477500
Parchase of traded goods 13 1282 - 1282
Changes in inventories of traded goods 1% @21z - (212))
Employse benellia expenss 20 Lziraz 1,12036
Finance costs bl 385 1288
Deprecintion and amenisation expense 2l 3529 6543
Oilier expensas 22 1,287.24 BE3 74
Total Expenses (1) 7.329.20 5.978.11
(Lass)iProfit hefore expectional fteme and tux (171 (041.7R) and ®1 (RARAT)
Esezptional iems (IV) 4.1 - - é
(Loss)Profit before tax (V=TII+1V) (941,78), 304.81 (636.97)
Tax expense
Curment tax = 5
Adjustment of i2x relating 12 carlier periods - -
Duferred tax Rilt)
Tutal Tax Expense (VI) (0.80 -
(Lossi/Profit for the year (VII=V-VT) {940.9%) 304.81
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss): 242
{a) Trems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss in subseguent periods:
(1) Re-mzasurement {lossMgain on defimed benefi plans - {2.62)] 282)
Total Other Comprehensive Income!{Loss) for the year (VIII) - (2.83| 2B82)|
I Total Comprehensive Inome/(Loss) for the year (IX=VII+VILI) (40.98)| EITEER (636.14)
Mates to the reconciliation:

(i) Transition (o Ind AS 116 "Leascs”

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospeetive appraach wherein as on the Transition date the ROU Assat is equal to Lease liakility. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated
from the commencement date to the carlier of the end of the useful 1ife of the right-0fuse asset o7 the ead of the lease 1enn, The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assels are determined an the seme basis as
those of property, plantand equipnient. In addition, the right-of-usc ssat is pesiodically reduced by impairment bosses, il any, and adjusted for certain re-mecasurements of the lease lisbility.

The lease linbility is initinHy mcasured at e present value of the leate payments thot are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest tale implicit in the lease o, if that mic canact be
readily d ined, the Company's i L ing eate, Generally, the Cotipany uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount mte.

i) Valuation of Security Deposits

As per lnd AS 109, all fusncial assels and babilities are required o be measured o their respective fibr value, The interest free refundable secunity deposits are fsancial 2ssets and are thus sequired w be
wieasured ar present value usmg an spproprate discoant mie e of eadering into lease ngreement. The difference between the fair value and the transaction price has bees recognised as prepad rent and is
amertised over the period of the lease on strzighi-line bosis, The prepaid reat bas been sdded 1¢ Right of use assel in case where the same Ias been created o lesse armangements. Subseguently, Lhese securily
deposits have been measured at amortiszd cost and the resultant interest is sccowsted as fnanze income,

{iii} Remeasurements on defined benefit Tability
Bath under Previous GAAP and Ind AS the Company recopnised costs related 1o postemployment defined benefit plan on an nctuarinl basis. Under Previcus GAAP, sciuarinl gaing and losses were reeogmised
i the Siarerent of profit or loss, hewever under Ind AS all actsarial gains and losscs arg ised in other ive income,
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Motes to Consolidated financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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42 Ratio Analysis and its clements

Interest Income on dcwsitiank Deposits

with banks

Ratio analysis and its elements Numerator Denominator Asat 3 March 2023 | As at 31 March 2022 %o Change Reason of Variance
@) Current ratio Current psssts Current fabilities 1.69 210 -19.514%
T didy I g
) Debicauity raiio Total Debt Sharehiders Equity 016 003 ST m:’;mm i FE_S':“M_
Loss)Eamings for debt &
. . icwlcf= Nnin%;ssll‘pmﬁl eGSR b, ’ .
(c)  Debtservice coverage ratio Lease Payments + (3.04) {181 <6820 duc to losses d during the year.
afler tases + Non-cash Principal Re s
operating cxpenscs FHRIPR RPN
(d) laventory wimover ratio Cest af poods sold Average Inventory 324 1.96 G,_m%m i ":y“;"r“” in purchase of stock in
(e} Trade reecivables tumover ralio Met credit sales = Gross | Average Trade 1582 10.02 20 90%|
credit snbes - sales refum | Reccivable
Net eredit purchases =
Gross eredil purchases -
(f}__Trade payables tumaover ratio P relurm Average Trade Payables .43 786 =13.02%|
{gd  Met capital tumover ratio Met sales = Total sabes - | Working capital = 2.66 Zab - 105
sales retum Current nssels = Current
linbilitics
() Retum on cquily ratio Met (Loss)yProfits after | Average Shorcholder's (0:22) (0.08) -163,63%| Redused due to losses incurred during the year.
ftases Equiy
(i}  Met profit ratic et (LossyProfit et sales = Total sales - (031 (010 =200.98%]
sales retumn
() Retum on capital employed {Loss)Eamings before | Capital Employed = .17 (0.04) -286.95%)
interest and taxes Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debit + Defierred
Tax Liability
(k] Retum on investment 04 003 17.75%

*Ratios varances have been explained for any chanpe by more than 25% as compared to the previous vear,

(Thiz space fas been intentionally lefi blank)
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43{a) Other Statutory Information

i) The Group does nat have any Benami property, whers any proceeding has been initiated or pending against The Group for bolding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thercunder,

1) The Group has outstanding balances with the below-mentioned companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013:

Nature of

+ . Balance gutstan
transactions with g

Mame of struck off Company struck-ofl

Ciniakic As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021

Faralam Enterprises Pyt Lid, Kundan Power Products Pvt. Lid, ABPX Phorma Pyt. Lid, Modi Pearls, Paint fashion pvt lid, Haridra Enterprises Privale
Litmited, Access 1solution Digital Marketing vt Ltd, DLB Group India Limited, Quidditas Farms Private Limited, Muynics Technologies Pyt. Lid., Direct
Media Shoppy, P.K. Enlerprises, Nearking India Pyt Ltd, Routeget Technologies Pvt. Lid,, Rushi herbal, RD Overseas, Fabrily Studio Private Limited,
Gilbard Apparel Pyt Ltd, Maya Jeanifer Teas (Pvi) Lid, DLB GROUP INDIA Limited, Studio Gulaal, Itan Tech India Pyt Lid, Jindal Brother, Dailin
Just2Fun Pyt Ltd, Darshan Enterprises, GXC ive Technologies Pyt Ltd, Anandha Vanji Enterprises Pvt. Ltd, Biokhemiks, Varadarams Silks,
Folds Samp Pt. Ltd., Wi {an Shoes PvL Ltd, Zeroza E-Commerce Private Limited, Osiva Technologies, Encephalon IT Services, Vape empire
india private limited, Zfambs India Ope Private Limited, Excel Rasayan Private Limited, Emirate Fashions Pyl Litd, Thulaam Solutions, Dhiganth Retail
Pyvt. Lid, Recham Online Services Pyt Ltd, Madskull Online Private Limited, Axios clothing pvt Itd, GB Onling Pyt Lid., Brew Brothers Put. Itd,, Lalu
Baby Cloth Diapers Pyt Ltd, Stermlight Technologies Pvt, Ltd,, Jacked To Play, Elegantect (OPC) Private Limited, D19 Foods & Beverages Pvi Lud,
Airfiber Technologics Private Limited, ARSH Wardrobes Pvt Ltd, House OF Paws Pyt Ltd, Oopla E-Commerce Pyt Ltd,, Procrafls Online Pyt Ltd,
Viser Digitech Pyt. Ltd,, Tectotron Private Limited, Viatrix Retails Pvi Lid, Pencilboxshop, Relygn Technologies Pyt Ltd, XPO Busi SKAY EMCO
Tools Indin Pyt Lid, Sharma Reliant Pvt, Ltd, Umale Enterprises India Private Limited, BangKaert InfoServices Pyt Lid, Cosmus bags privatel Customer Balanee in 0.08 0.05
limited,Bigfaleon web services private limited Health gadgets private limited Geteured apotheeary private limited Diviam kirpa international Wallet i
privatelimited Ready2walk india private limited Ganga fashions private limited Aizellife care private limited Plp production & marketing (ope) private
limited, Grolden bricks private limited Ipsel entertainment private limited Opexworks solutions private limited Spacecom worldwide private limited, Ganga
fashions private limited Green handle products private limited, Vital care private limited, Axomi handlooms (ope) private limited, Bookmyoutfit online|
privats limited, Public clothing private limited, Tannu info services private limited, Hey martina retail private limiled, Twenty four spoke private limited,
Saartha living private limited, Kat thread private limited, Bestrong ventures private limited, Kiedings fashion private limited, Pl elothing private hmited,
Ploxusplus zoas private limited, Skylark express (dethi) private limited, Matangi polymers and products private limited, Swinging tales graphic studic
{opc) private limited, Technistar india private limited, Fashion cottage private limited, Viro hub private limited, Heed publications private limited, Spg
india private limited, Indigene cmarket private limited, Globalsoft technologies private limited, Akar limited.

Adventium Business solutions pvt ltd, Rolli¢ Lifestyle Pvi Lid., Shruti a Publications and Bauobe Pyt Lid, Trade Receivables 0.00 0.00

i) The Group doss not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC bevond the statulory period,

iv) The Group have net traded or invested in Crypto surrency or Virlual Currency during the financial year.

v} The Group have not advanced or Joaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or etity(ies), including forcign entitics (1 diaries) with the ding that the i diary shall:
a) directly or indirectly lead or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by of on behialf of The Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

vi} The Group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (whether ded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall ©
a) directly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons o entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate Bencficiarics) or
b) provide any guarantee, securily or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics.

vii} The Group does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of that has been or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such

as, search or survey or any ather relovant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
viii) The Group have not been declared wilful defauller by any bank or linancial institution or govemment or any government authority.
i%) The Group have nat revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assels during the year ended March 31, 2023,

x) The Code on Social Seeunity, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee beatfits during empl and post-empl benefits received Presidentinl assent in Seplember 2020, However, the date on which Lhe Code will come
into effect has not been notified. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes inte l:ITem. and wlll record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes effective.

43(b) Thc Group acquired control in Wug,m'i‘cdmologt&s Private Limited in FY 2021-22. Post acquisilion, as the Group is very cautious of maintaining and impl ing the high standards of operational and financial contral
the said subsidiary is conti Iy working on identifying and improvising the control gaps along with implementation of the policics and prowdulcs laid down across the gmup The Group as a matter of caution
has provided for Rs. 52,29 millions as doubtful advances to suppliers, Rs. 7.31 millions as doubtul reccivables from customers and Rs. 8,91 millions has been written off as bad debls in the books of accounts with respeet lo
Wigzo Technologies Private Limited.

(Thixs space has been intenttonally left blank)
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Subsequent to 1Ir;ycarc1|dtd Mareh 31, 2023, the boned of directors of the Holding company of the: group, in the meeting held on August 19, 2023 hos approved a composite scheme of arrang under section 230 to 232

and olher appli provision of the Compenics Act 2013 between the Holding company (*Transferee Compaiy”) and Picksr Technologies Private Limited {"Transferor Company™), a subsidiary of the Holding company of the
group and Ihslr rcspccu\.v sharcholders and creditars (*Scleme"). The scheme inter-alia provides for the Sharc entiticment mtio for the proposed demerger being 48,267 (Forty-Eight Thousand Two Huadred and Sixty-Seven)
Non-Converit ble Prefercnce Shares of Transferce Campany having face vatue of INR. 100 each fully paid up shal be issucd for cvery 10 (Ten) equity shares held in Tranaforor Company having face valuz of INR 10
cach fully paid up.

The Appointed Date for the Scheme is April 1, 2023 or such other date as may be determined by the Board of Directors of Transforee Company and feror Company or such other date a5 may be fixed or approved by the
National Company Law Tribuna! (NCLT) or such ather competent authority. The scheme is subject to receipt of regulatory and other approvals inter-alia approvals from NCLT, Sharcholders, creditors and others, as may be
applicable.

Subscquent to Uhe vear ended March 31, 2023, the board of dircctors of the Holding company of the sroup, as a part of iterral restructuring in the meeting held on August 29, 2023 has provided prncipal epproval of the
Holding conpay’s (" Transferee Compans™) plans 1o scquine e technology based platform soluton from Wigso Technologies Private Limited ("Transferor Company"), a subsidiary of the Holding company of the group on
yoing coneen basis by way of 2 Shamp Sale for o lomp sum omsnd:mm n complianes with the provisions of Scetion 508 read with Section 2(42C) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, The Group is in the process of formalising
he plan and other terms and iated with ihe said

There are numercds iterprelalive issues relating Lo the Supreme Court (SC) judgemient on Provident Fund dnled Fobnaary 28, 2009, The Greup is already in compli with said order for the year, However, Ihcrc i5 uncertainty
on the determination of the liability pectively, because Iy there 55 no limit on how much retrospeetive it can get, 2ad can begin from the commencement of operations of the group. The Group will enly record 3

provision, on receiving further elarity oo the subjeet

Pravious vear's fignres have been regrouped ¢ reclassed wharever necessary to confirm 1o current year's classification.

As per our report of even date

For 5.R, Batliboi & Associates L
Chartered Accountants
1CAI Firm Registratiog)™y

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors

B)gfor Retail Solutions Private Limited
/ K

Sanhil Goel Gaptamy Kapoor
Director
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